BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL
TOWN HALL
DUKE STREET
BARROW-IN-FURNESS

Tuesday, 6th September, 2022

To: The Members of Barrow Borough Council
Madam Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen
You are hereby summoned to attend an Extraordinary meeting of BARROW BOROUGH
COUNCIL to be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at the TOWN HALL, BARROW on
WEDNESDAY, 14TH SEPTEMBER, 2022 COMMENCING AT 5.30 PM for the transaction
of the business specified below.

Chief Executive
_______________
Business
1.

TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

URGENT ITEMS
To deal with any items of business which the Chair decides should be considered
as matters of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government
Act 1972.
(Urgent business may only be taken by reason of special
circumstances (which will be recorded in the minutes), and if the Chair of the
meeting is of the opinion that the item should be considered as a matter of
urgency).

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in respect of
items on this Agenda and to consider any dispensations
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct,
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s
Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).
To expedite the business of the meeting, Members are requested to give the
Chief Executive adequate notice of any Amendment which they propose to raise.

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency,
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests
which they have already declared in the Register, as well as any other registrable
or other interests.
4.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader or Head of Paid Service.

5.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later
than 5pm two working days before the meeting. Information on how to make the
application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s website
www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Democratic Services Team at
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 07825206525.
(1) Questions and Representations
To receive any questions or representations which have been received from
members of the public.
(2) Deputations and Petitions
To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from
members of the public.

6.

LGR - UPDATE AND APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM HEAD OF PAID SERVICES
To consider appointment of an interim Head of Paid Service.

7.

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW
To consider recommendations on the outcome of the Community Governance
Review.

8.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
To consider the revised Medium Term Financial Plan for 2022-2024.

Agenda Item 6
Page 3

PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
14 September 2022
LGR – update and Appointment of Interim Head of Paid
Service
Report from:

Chief Executive

Report Author:

Debbie Storr

Wards:

(All Wards);

1.0

Summary and Conclusions

1.1

To receive an update on resource requirements of the senior management team
as we head towards vesting day for the new Westmorland and Furness Council
and to seek confirmation of appointment of an interim Head of Paid Service for
the period to 31 March 2023.

2.0
2.1

Recommendation
It is recommended that Council:(1) Receive the update;
(2) Agree the appointment of Interim Head of Paid Service as detailed
within the report on a temporary basis, with immediate effect, for a
period to 31 March 2023; and
(3) That the Constitution be amended to include delegations to the Interim
Head of Paid Service and updates to the Proper Officer appointments
as detailed within the report.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

As Members will be aware, the Chief Executive has been appointed as Chief
Executive to the new Westmorland and Furness Council, and is currently acting
in that role on an interim basis.

3.2

Council has recently been advised of the impact of local government
reorganisation on existing roles within this Council and the capacity issues that
are continuing to exist as we continue to deliver business as usual as well as
looking at service design of the new Council.

3.3

External support has been sought and continues to be sought where appropriate
to ensure that the Council continues to deliver for its residents and to enable a
seamless transition to the new council.

Agenda Item 6
Page 4
3.4

The Chief Executive is currently also the Head of Paid Service and the proposal
is for that function to transfer as detailed in this report whilst the Council
transitions to the new Westmorland and Furness Council.

3.5

This report asks Council to approve the appointment of Interim Head of Paid
Service to support the Chief Executive and senior management team between
now and the end of March 2023.

3.6

The recommendation is following a process where potential candidates were
sourced from a specialised agency, those with relevant experience were
shortlisted by senior officers; the Chief Officer Appointment Panel is interviewing
on 6 September which is the date of despatch of this agenda and the outcome
will be notified to members ahead of the meeting with the name of the candidate
being recommended.

3.7

Members are also asked to confirm delegations to the Chief Executive cover the
Interim Head of Paid Service as well so that the Interim is able to exercise the
same functions as the current Chief Executive as set out in Appendix 1 to the
report. Some revisions are also proposed to the Proper Officer appointments as
shown.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Not applicable

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

The alternative option is not to appoint, but additional resources are required to
ensure that the Council can ensure business as usual and enable a seamless
transfer to a new Council.

6.0

Contribution to Council Plan Priorities

6.1

The appointment is intended to support delivery of all the Council Plan priorities
and objectives.

7.0

Implications

7.1

Financial, Resources and Procurement

7.1.1 The budget for this role comes from the Council’s local reserve set aside for
Local Government Reorganisation; this is distinct from the Cumbria-wide LGR
Reserve. The procurement used a specialised agency to source candidates
which were compared and interviewed. The interim post is part time and is paid
on days worked; the budget requirement is estimated to be £90k.

Agenda Item 6
Page 5
7.2

Legal

7.2.1 Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 provides that it shall
be the duty of every relevant authority to designate one of their officers as the
Head of Paid Service.
7.2.2 The appointment is required to be made by Council.
7.3

Local Government Reorganisation

7.3.1 This appointment is to support the LGR process and ensure the continued and
effective operation of Barrow Borough Council’s services and participation in the
transition to Westmorland and Furness Council.
7.4

Equality and Diversity

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – no issues to raise for this
report
Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Lack of Capacity to deliver
and ensure smooth transition
to new Council

Reputational, failure to
deliver

Risk

Consequence

Ensure capacity is there
to support the transition
to the new authority and
maintain effective
controls.
Controls required

Contact Officers
sjplum@barrowbc.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix 1 - Revised Delegation Scheme
Background Documents Available
None

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 7

Part 3(2)
Responsibility for Functions
Scheme of Delegations to Officers
CONTENT
1

Guidance and Background

2

General Delegations

3

PAGE
2

General delegations

3

Authorisations

4

Other provisions regarding general delegations

4

Officer Delegations

Section A

Chief Executive, Interim Head of Paid Service, Directors and Deputy
Director of People and Place

5

Section B

Head of Legal and Governance

12

Section C

Head of Development Management

14

Section D

Head of Building Control

17

Section E

Head of Public Protection

18

Section F

Head of Programme Management and Climate Change

24

Section G

Collections and Exhibitions Manager

26

Section H

Head of Asset Management

4

Appointments of Proper Officer & Deputy Proper Officer

29

5

Organisational Structure

35

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 1

Agenda Item 6

SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Appendix 1
Page 8

Part 1 – Guidance and Background
1.

Introduction

1.1

This part of Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council’s (“the Council”) Constitution
deals with delegations from the Council and its committees to officers of the
Council. Delegations to committees and sub-committees are set out in Part 3(1)
of the Council’s Constitution.

1.2

The scheme aims to provide evidence that the Council (or one of its committees)
has authorised a particular officer of the Council to take an action or make a
decision in given circumstances.

1.3

The scheme meets the requirement in Section 100G (2) of the Local Government
Act 1972 that the Council should maintain a list: (a) specifying those powers of
the Council which are exercisable by officers of the Council in pursuance of
arrangements made under the 1972 Act or any other enactment for their
discharge by those officers; and (b) stating the title of the officer by whom each of
the powers so specified is exercisable.

2.

Legislative Framework

2.1

Section 101(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 empowers the Council to
delegate certain of its functions to a committee, sub-committee or officer of the
Council, or to another local authority.

2.2

Only the body or officer on whom a statutory power has been conferred may
exercise that power, unless sub-delegation has been expressly authorised by
words or necessary implications. Section 101(2) of the Local Government Act
1972 contains such a (limited) express power to sub-delegate. It provides that
committees are empowered to sub-delegate to sub-committees or to officers, and
that sub-committees are empowered to sub-delegate to officers, unless the
Council otherwise directs.

2.3

In general a delegation by the Council does not imply a parting with authority. The
Council retains not only the power to revoke the grant but also the power to act
concurrently on matters within the area of delegated authority (except in so far as
the Council may already have become bound by an act of its delegate). Section
101(4) formalises this general position in respect of delegation arrangements
made by the Council or one of its committees, by providing that such
arrangements shall not prevent the authority or the committee by whom the
arrangements are made from exercising those functions (i.e. they retain
concurrent power to do so).

2.4

Legislative provisions prescribe that certain of the Council’s functions may not be
delegated. These include:

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 2

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 9
o levying, or issuing a precept for a rate (as per Section 101(6) of the Local
Government Act 1972); and
o functions listed The Local Authorities (Committee System) (England) Regulations
2012.

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 3

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 10

Part 2 – General Delegations
1.

General Delegations

1.1

The Council delegates: -

1.1.2 In respect of the officers, or the group of officers, named in Part 3 of this scheme,
the functions described in that part, subject to consultation with the officer named
in that part, where applicable;
1.1.3 In respect of the appointments as Proper Officer and Deputy Proper Officer in the
table in Part 4 of this Scheme, the functions mentioned in the first column of that
table.
1.2

Where the Council, a committee or a sub-committee gives authority for the doing
of anything the officer designated shall be entitled to take all necessary steps for
the doing of such thing.

1.3

Where a delegation is made without naming an officer the delegation shall be
deemed to authorise the Chief Executive/Interim Head of Paid Service or the
appropriate Director to take such steps.

1.4

The Chief Executive or Interim Head of Paid Service may exercise the powers
delegated to any Officer except in relation to those functions allocated to the
Director of Resources as Chief Financial Officer (within the meaning of the Local
Government Act 1972 Section 151 and the Local Government Finance Act 1988
Sections 112-114A (unless he or she is qualified under the Local Government
Finance Act 1988 Section 113)) and to the Monitoring Officer (within the meaning
of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 Sections 5, 5A).

1.5

The Council has an Interim Head of the Paid Service.

1.6

The Director of Resources is the Chief Finance Officer.

1.7

The Head of Legal and Governance is the Monitoring Officer.

1.8

In the event that a Head of Service’s post ceases to exist or his or her
responsibilities are transferred to another Head of Service (as the case may be),
temporarily or permanently, then the powers given by this Scheme of Delegation
shall be exercisable by the officer in whose area of responsibility the power falls
to be exercised.

1.9

Any reference in this Scheme or its Appendix to an Act of Parliament includes
reference to subordinate legislation made under it and to any modification and/or
replacement of it or of such subordinate legislation.

1.10

The Scheme of Delegation as revised came into effect on * September 2022
unless otherwise stated.

1.11

Nothing in this Scheme of Delegation shall prejudice the validity of any actions
taken by Officers before * September 2022 under any previous scheme.

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 4

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 11

2.

Authorisations

2.1

Officers to whom functions are delegated under this scheme may not subdelegate those functions. However, where it would be impracticable for all the
powers and duties conferred on a named person to be performed by that
individual, that person may authorise officers in their departments to perform
tasks, or to carry out specific statutory functions under the provisions of relevant
legislation, on their behalf.

2.2

Each Officer will ensure that where s/he wishes to authorise officers within her/his
department to sign documents or perform functions on her/his behalf s/he will:

2.2.1 Where applicable, record that authorisation, naming the officer, the date, tasks
which that officer is authorised to perform, and including the signature of the
officer, and retain that record until such a time it is no longer required; and
2.2.2 Where applicable, comply with the requirements of the Council’s Financial
Regulations and Contract Standing Orders.
2.3

An authorised officer will perform the tasks on behalf of the authorising officer.
Any decisions taken under this, or any other similar authority, shall remain the
responsibility of the Authorising Officer and must be taken in the name of that
Officer.

3.

Other provisions regarding general delegation

3.1

Officers shall have delegated powers to make decisions on behalf of the Council
in respect of those matters that are delegated to them within this scheme. A
Director may exercise any delegations of an officer, for whom, that Director is
responsible, in the absence or default of that officer.

3.2

Where a delegation is made but without naming an officer, the delegation shall be
deemed to be a delegation to the Chief Executive/Interim Head of Paid Service,
or to the Director/Deputy Director responsible for that service area.

3.3

The Chief Executive, Directors, Deputy Director and Heads of Service delegated
to under this scheme may authorise officers as explained in paragraph 2 of this
Part, above with each authorisation being copied to the Monitoring Officer.

3.4

Where a Director/Deputy Director is to be absent for any period, that
Director/Deputy Director may nominate to the Chief Executive/Interim Head of
Paid Service, in writing, another officer to act in that capacity during the period of
absence.

3.5

The Chief Executive/Interim Head of Paid Service may appoint one or more
deputies to exercise his/her functions owing to absence or illness and such
deputy is or such deputies are authorised to exercise the functions of the Chief
Executive/Interim Head of Paid Service pursuant to the Constitution, Financial
Regulations and this Scheme of Delegation except in relation to those functions
allocated to the Director of Resources as Chief Finance Officer (within the
meaning of the Local Government Act 1972 Section 151 and the Local
Government Finance Act 1988 Sections 112-114A (unless he or she is qualified

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 5

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 12
under the Local Government Finance Act 1988 Section113)) and to the
Monitoring Officer (within the meaning of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989 Sections 5, 5A)

Part 3 - Scheme of Officer Delegations
Section A
A.

General Principles

With the exception of the power set out in B.1.1 below the powers delegated to officers
referred to in this part of the Constitution may only be exercised in accordance with the
following general principles.
1.

2.

3.

All decisions taken must be in accordance with the approved budget, policy
framework, financial regulations, contract standing orders, or any other procedure
rules or requirements of this Constitution
Where, in the opinion of the officer making a delegated decision, that decision is
likely to be contentious, before taking that decision the officer will consult with the
relevant Committee Chair or a more senior officer as the case may be.
An officer may, instead of exercising a delegated power, refer the matter to a more
senior officer or committee or the full Council as appropriate.

B.

General

1.

To the Chief Executive/Interim Head of Paid Service

1.1

To take such action on behalf of the Council as appears to them necessary in
circumstances that prevent obtaining the necessary authority from Council or an
appropriate Committee following consultation with the Leader of the Council, or the
Chair of the committee concerned. Where the Chief Executive is acting in an
emergency and it involves spending outside any budgetary provision, then any
expenditure must be reported to full Council at the first available opportunity.

1.2

To deal with matters concerned with civic and ceremonial occasions together with
civic hospitality including authorising at her discretion or on direction from the
Executive Committee to arrange for the flying of the Union Jack flag over Barrow
Town Hall on such occasion as may be appropriate and which are not among
those presently specified.

1.3

To oversee the discharge of the Employer’s responsibilities associated with the
safety, health and welfare of persons not in the Council’s employment who may be
placed at risk by the operation of the authority.

1.4

To undertake on behalf of the Council negotiations and discussions with trade
unions and other staff organisations concerned with employees of the Council.

1.5

The determination of any applications from individuals and organisations using the
facilities in consultation with the Leader and s.151 Officer.

1.6

To consider any request for a review by any owner with regards to a decision to
approve a nomination to the Council’s List of Assets of Community Value.

1.7

To take all necessary administrative action in connection with the operation of
elections and electoral administration

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 6

Agenda Item 6
1.8

Appendix 1
Page 13
To make such amendments as may be necessary from time to time to the Barrowin-Furness Parliamentary Polling Districts and the Barrow Borough Polling Districts.

2.

To the Chief Executive/Interim Head of Paid Service and Directors

2.1

There is delegated to the Chief Executive, Interim Head of Paid Service and to the
Directors (“the Officers”) all the powers and duties of the Council necessary for the
discharge of the Council’s functions carried out within the Officer’s Directorate or
area of responsibility, including day to day management of buildings and services
under their control.

2.2

To take all necessary steps to deliver the services for which they are responsible
for to incur revenue expenditure within the Council’s budgets, subject to
compliance with standing orders, financial regulations and any council policy for the
time being in force.

2.3

To manage and deal with all people, welfare, inclusivity and training issues (unless
otherwise covered by the Officer Procedure Rules) including making changes
within the establishment, within Directorate areas, provided that all decisions are
within Council policies and approved budgets and within any general HR
management policies and procedures.

2.4

For the avoidance of doubt, people, welfare, inclusivity and training issues include
appointments, promotions, discipline, grievance, early retirement, redundancy,
leave, additional duties, ex-gratia payments, car allowances and any relevant
appeals in accordance with HR management policies and procedures (unless
otherwise covered by the Officer Procedure Rules).

2.5

The appointment of staff above the NJC scheme but below Assistant Director level
(as per Executive Committee Decision15.9.21 Minute No. 57).

2.6

To be responsible for the health, safety and welfare of employees.

2.7

To implement national agreements, salaries, terms and conditions of employment
and to undertake negotiations and discussions on industrial relations as
appropriate.

2.8

To appoint staff as Duly Authorised Officers and Inspectors of the Council and
suitable competent individuals not in the employ of the Council in appropriate
circumstances.

2.9

To exercise powers of entry for the purposes of any statutory power insofar as the
powers relate to the functions entrusted to that Officer.

2.10

To serve all notices relevant to statutory responsibilities that come within their area
of responsibility and to take appropriate enforcement action in the event of default
by persons served with such notices.

2.11

The imposition of civil penalties under s.126 and Schedule 9 Housing and Planning
Act 2016, and the application for Banning Orders under Part 2 of the Act and
Applications for Rent Repayment Orders.

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 7

Agenda Item 6
2.12

Appendix 1
Page 14
Authentication of documents where necessary to any legal procedure or
proceedings on behalf of the Council.

2.13

Authorising Letters or Deeds of Postponement under s.156 Housing Act 1985 in
accordance with the Council’s approved procedure

2.14

To respond to the government and other consultation bodies following appropriate
consultation.

2.15

To take all steps necessary to implement decisions of the Council or its
Committees.

2.16

To consider any representations and objections received from persons on whom
notices of intent are served under the Redress Scheme for Lettings Agency Works,
etc. Regulations 2014 and in those cases to authorise final notices, either as set
out in the notice of intent, in modified form or to withdraw notices.

2.17

In relation to matters or functions for which the officer concerned is responsible,
issuing requisitions for information under Section 16 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Section 330 of the Town and Country
Planning act 1990 or any similar provision in any other existing or future legislation.

2.18

To consider and make appointment of consultants.

2.19

In consultation with the s.151 Officer to agree to act as Accountable Body where
the project is less than £50,000 in total and satisfies the requirements of the
Financial Regulations.

2.20

In the absence of the Chief Executive, the power to make emergency decisions in
consultation with the relevant Committee Chair or Vice-Chair in their absence
together with the Leader of the Council.

2.21

The setting of fees and charges, such fees and charges to be set against the
Discretionary Income Policy or increased in line with the annual budget proposals.

3.

To Chief Executive, Interim Head of Paid Service, Directors and Heads of
Service

3.1

Powers to take any decision on behalf of the Council, not otherwise delegated,
which can lawfully be delegated to Officers, subject to the decision taker, before
taking the decision, having taken appropriate steps to consult the Leader and/or
Chair and if appropriate members of the Committee which would, save for this
delegated power, have taken the decision.

4.

To the Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer)
The Council’s Financial Regulations set out in more detail the statutory and nonstatutory powers of the Director of Resources and the rules within which the
financial affairs of the Council are administered.

4.1

The Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) has the following delegations and
as set out in the above rules:

4.2

Properly managing and administering of all the Council’s financial affairs in
accordance with all statutory requirements, any adopted codes of practice and the

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 8

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 15
Council’s Financial Regulations (including any technical adjustments to the
Council’s approved budgets, or accounts to ensure compliance to safeguard the
Council’s financial position.
4.3

Preparation of the revenue budget and capital programme; responsibility for the
overall financial control of the revenue budgets and capital programme of the
Council. For subdividing service budgets within the overall budget framework
according to Council structure and services, having regard to relevant Codes of
Practice. For allocating the revenue budgets and capital programme wholly among
responsible Heads of Service.

4.4

To approve annually a list of expenditure proposals for which revenue budget
provision had been made in the previous year and for which the particular goods or
services had not been supplied before the financial year end; and a list of
expenditure proposals on capital schemes for which provision had been made in
the capital programme for the previous year but which was under or overspent so
that supplementary estimates may be considered for the ensuing financial year.

4.5

Where an individual debtor owes the Council no more than £25,000 (Borough
share), the Director of Resources may approve the write off of that debt where
there is satisfactory evidence that it is irrecoverable. In any other case, the debt
may be written off only with the approval of the Executive Committee. However,
there may be occasions when an immediate write off decision above £25,000 is
necessary, for example at year end, to enable the completion of the final accounts
within the statutory timescale. In such cases the Director of Resources will have
authority to approve a maximum Business Rate write off of no more than £62,500.

4.6

Treasury management; the Director of Resources is responsible for all investment,
borrowing and leasing undertaken in the name of the Council. Preparation of the
annual Treasury Management Policy Statement, Treasury Management Strategy,
Investment Strategy, Prudential Indicators including borrowing limits, and ensure
compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the
Council’s Treasury Management Policy Statement.

4.7

Preparation of an annual Capital Strategy.

4.8

Maintaining an effective Internal Audit service.

4.9

To determine the Council Tax Base, calculating the Council Tax Requirement,
calculating the Council Tax as required by legislation; by Parish and by Band. The
award of mandatory or discretionary, exemptions, disregards and discounts.
Billing, collection and recovery of Council Tax due.

4.10

To apply any applicable or relevant changes in the Housing Benefit Regulations to
the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme. Determining, assessing, awarding and
paying Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.

4.11

To determine the Non-Domestic Rate Base. Dealing with all matters relating to the
Business Rate Retention Scheme and agency arrangements, including billing,
collection, recovery and the award of mandatory or discretionary, exemptions and
reliefs. Determining membership of the Cumbria Business Rate Pool.

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 9

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 16
4.12

Payment of precept demands.

4.13

To administer, bill, collect and enforce levies arising under a Business
Improvement District (BID) Scheme. Payment of the levy collected to the BID.

4.14

To determine all arrangements for the collection, recording, payment and recovery
of VAT.

4.15

To arrange banking, treasury and other financial services, including indemnities,
guarantees, bonds, securities, leasing arrangements and advances. Only officers
personally mandated by the Director of Resources may authorise payments and
other documents transferring funds out of the Council’s bank accounts.

4.16

Effecting all insurance cover on a corporate basis, through external insurance or
through internal self-insurance arrangements as the Director of Resources
considers appropriate. Negotiating all claims in consultation with relevant Heads of
Service where necessary, including settlement of those claims uninsured to a limit
of £10,000.

4.17

The administration of all arrangements for the payment of salaries, pensions, travel
and subsistence claims and other emoluments to existing and former employees,
and for all related matters.

4.18

To institute and defend any legal proceedings in respect of any matter relating to
the functions of the Council (including the service of any notice or order, the
exercise of any power of entry and engaging the Council’s solicitors) in any case
where such action is necessary to give effect to decisions of the Council (including
for the avoidance of doubt any officer acting under delegated powers) or in any
case where the Director of Resources considers that such action is necessary to
protect the Council’s interests.

4.19

To make changes to the list of employees representing the Council in the
Magistrates Court as section 151 Officer to deal with local taxation matters.

4.20

To authorise Covert Surveillance under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act
and within the Council’s adopted policy.

5.

To the Director of People and Place

5.1

Authority to enter into new leases for Council owned shops and garages and for
any other leases under the Landlord and Tenant Acts up to a period of 25 years.

5.2

With Management Team, authority to consider and approve applications under the
Council’s Corporate Community Lettings Policy (Executive Committee 10.3.21).

5.3

Authority to agree and accept surrenders of leases.

5.4

Authority to enter into licences in respect of land and property owned by the
Council, including licences in respect of allotments, garage bases, fun fairs and icecream vending bases.

5.5

To make representations as a responsible authority as outlined in the Licensing Act
2003 for the following considerations:

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 10

Agenda Item 6
•
•

Appendix 1
Page 17
Public Protection Services and
Health and Safety at Work

5.6

To exercise the Council’s functions and enforcement powers under the Anti-Social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

5.7

To exercise the Council’s functions under the Environmental Protection Act 1990,
including authority to serve and revoke statutory and fixed penalty notices and to
take appropriate enforcement action in the event of non-compliance including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provisions with relation to litter
Waste Collection
Statutory nuisances and clean air
Contaminated land
Control of stray dogs, including functions imposed or conferred by s.149
(1)
Authority to waive kenneling fees either in part or in full where appropriate
after consideration of the social implications of each case.

5.8

To exercise the Council’s functions under the Traffic Management Act 2004 and
relevant Traffic Regulation Orders, including cancellation of excess charge notices
in accordance with the guidelines laid down.

5.9

Authority to deal with all matters related to the Landlord and Tenant Act regarding
Barrow Market, including rent reviews and variations, including any varying or
waiving of rents, lease renewals, notices to quit and landlord approvals, where
appropriate and where there is a social or economic benefit to the Borough in doing
so.

5.10

Management and enforcement of Market Tenancy conditions including use of legal
remedies to deal with breaches by current and former tenants.

5.11

The management of all stock within the Council’s Housing Revenue Account to be
exercised in accordance with all relevant legislation and the Council’s agreed
policy.

5.12

Management and enforcement of tenancy conditions, including use of legal
remedies to remedy breaches and to take action to recover debts outstanding with
regards to former Council tenants, including use of legal redress.

5.13

To authorise adaptations for disabled tenants up to the Council agreed limit
(currently £40,000)

5.14

Authority, in consultation with the Head of Legal and Governance, to defend the
Council against any legal claims made against it in connection with the
management of the Council’s housing stock, for example disrepair.

5.15

To ensure applications to waive repayments of discount under the Right to Buy are
dealt with expediently and in a confidential manner, delegation to consider and
decide on such applications after consultation with the Chair of the Executive
Committee and s.151 Officer.

5.16

To agree the disposal and sale of small ad-hoc parcels of land on Council Housing
Land where they are adjacent to and can be incorporated into adjoining residential

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 11

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 18
belonging to the prospective purchase in accordance with agreed policy up to a
value of £20,000. The authorisation includes instructing a conveyancing solicitor to
transfer the legal title of the property. (Note: appeal through the Housing
Management Forum if request is declined).
5.17

Fulfilment of the Council’s statutory duties with regards to homeless persons.

5.18

To hear and determine homelessness appeals

5.19

making decisions re waiving repayment of discount under the Right to Buy after
consultation with the Chair of the Executive Committee and s.151 Officer.

5.20

To approve or reject nominations for inclusion on the List of Assets of Community
Value under s.88 of the Localism Act 2011.

5.21

The setting of the following fees and charges, where discretionary, to be set
against the Discretionary Income Policy:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Land Charge fees
The setting of charges for the Council’s Ordnance Survey Plan printing
service.
To agree fees and charges for pre-application planning advice.
To set and review fees for charging for Environmental Information.
To set additional charges and future fees for discretionary activities against
the Discretionary Income Policy.

5.22

To formally enter into Planning Performance Agreements; agree any subsequent
variations or amendments to an approved Planning Performance Agreement; and
secure bespoke fees associated with any Planning Performance Agreements
(Minute No. 22 Executive Committee 8th July, 2020 refers).

5.23

Authority, in consultation with the Chair of Executive Committee to put in place the
necessary arrangements to facilitate the establishment, governance requirements
and ongoing control of the Local Authority Trading Company for the delivery of
Leisure Services (Minute No. 117 Council 21st April, 2021 refers).

6.

To the Deputy Director of People and Place and Capital Programme
Manager

6.1

Authority to exercise any power delegated to his/her Director in this Section of Part
3 that relates to his/her Directors’ area of responsibility.

7.

To the Heads of Service and Capital Programme Manager

7.1

Authority to enter into contracts in accordance with the contract standing orders
within the Council’s Constitution within agreed Management guidance limits.

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 12

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 19

Section B
To the Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer)
1.1

To be responsible for the conduct of all legal and quasi-legal proceedings entered
into by the Council including the appointment of external Solicitors, Counsel and
professional witnesses as appropriate.

1.2

Instituting legal proceedings on behalf of the Council and representing the Council
before any Court, Tribunal, Inquiry or other hearing.

1.3

In consultation with the relevant Director, to take action, including prosecution in
respect of any breach of legislation for which the Council, or an officer of the
Council, is the responsible enforcement authority and it is in the interest of the
Council and in the public interest to do so.

1.4

In consultation with the relevant Director, to issue civil proceedings in any
appropriate Court or Tribunal for the recovery of a financial payment, possession or
repossession or property, or to seek any other appropriate remedy.

1.5

To respond to all proceedings of a legal or quasi-legal nature issued against the
Council in consultation with the s.151 Officer, to settle claims up to a maximum of
£10,000 where there is a legal liability on the Council.

1.6

The preparation and completion of documents required to give effect to decisions
of the Council, its committees or sub-committees or officers acting under delegated
authority.

1.7

To serve any notices required under contract not otherwise delegated to the Chief
Executive or a Director and to take appropriate enforcement action in the event of
default by persons served with such notices.

1.8

To approve applications for anti-social behaviour orders either by the Police or by
the Council (This delegation is also with the Director of People and Place)

1.9

Following consultation with the Chair of the Council, alter the agreed starting times
of Council meetings if the volume of business to be transacted appears to warrant
change.

1.10

To take such action as is delegated to them under the Council’s Standards
Arrangements

1.11

In consultation with the Independent Person, the power to grant dispensations up
to a maximum of 4 years in the following circumstances:
•

•

That he/she considers that without the dispensation the number of persons
prohibited from participating in any particular business would be so great a
proportion of body transacting the business as to impede the transaction of
the business
That, without the dispensation, the representation of different political groups
on the body transacting any particular business would be so upset as to alter
the likely outcome of any vote relating to the business

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 13

Agenda Item 6
1.12

Appendix 1
Page 20
To respond on behalf of the Council, in consultation with the Chair of Audit and
Governance, to national reviews and consultations on standards related issues.

1.13

To administer the Members’ Allowances Scheme.

1.14

To give effect to the wishes of the Political Group Leaders in relation to the
appointment of Members to Committees and Sub-Committees pursuant to Section
16, Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

1.15

To authorise Covert Surveillance under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act
and within the Council’s adopted policy.

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 14

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 21
Part 4 – Appointments

of Proper Officer & Deputy Proper Officer

1

Legislative background

1.1

Legislation requires the Council to appoint specific officers and to identify officers
for particular responsibilities.

1.2

The Council has appointed the following Proper Officers under the enactments
shown in the table below.

1.3

The Deputy Proper Officer is also authorised to act.

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 15

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 22
DESIGNATION OF PROPER OFFICERS
The following are the Proper Officers of the Council under the enactments shown below. The
alternative Proper Officer is also authorised to act.
Section of the Local Government Act 1972
Proper Officer’s Functions
s.13(3) - Parish Trustee
s.83 (1) to (4) - Witness and
receipt of Declarations of
Acceptance of Office
s.84 Receipt of Declaration of
Resignation of Office
s.88(2) - Convening of
meeting of Council to fill
casual vacancy in the office of
Chairman
s.89(1)(b) - Receipt of notices
of pecuniary interest
s.96(1) - Receipt of notices of
pecuniary interest
s.96(2) - Keeping record of
disclosure of pecuniary
interest under Section 94 and
notices under Section 96(1)
s. 100B(2) - Circulation of
papers and reports
s.100B(5) - Withholding of
reports containing exempt
information
s.100B(7)(c) - Supply of
papers to the press
s.100C(2) - Summaries of
minutes
s.100D - Inspection of
background papers
s.100F – Members right to
papers
s.115(2) – Receipt of money
due from officers
s.146(1)(a) and (b) –
Declarations and service with
regard to securities

Proper Officer
Monitoring Officer
Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Alternative Proper Officer
Deputy Monitoring Officer
Chief Executive or
Democratic Services
Manager
Chief Executive

Monitoring Officer

Chief Executive

Returning Officer
Monitoring Officer

Deputy Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Deputy Monitoring Officer

Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager
Monitoring Officer

Chief Executive Monitoring
Officer
Chief Executive

Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager
Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager
Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager
Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager
Director of Resources

Chief Executive Monitoring
Officer
Chief Executive Monitoring
Officer
Chief Executive Monitoring
Officer
Chief Executive Monitoring
Officer
Deputy s.151 Officer

Director of Resources

Deputy s.151 Officer

Section of the Local Government Act 1972
Proper officer’s Functions
s.151 – Responsibility for the
proper administration of the
Council’s financial affairs
s.191 – Functions with respect
to ordnance survey

Proper Officer
Director of Resources

Alternative Proper Officer
Deputy s.151 Officer

Director of People and Place

Head of Regeneration &
Planning Policy

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 16

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 23
s.210(6) and (7) – Charity
functions of holders of offices
with existing authorities
transferred to holders of
equivalent offices with new
authorities or, if there is no
such office, to Proper Officer
s.212(1) – Local Registrar for
Land Charges
s.225(1) – Proper Officer
function – deposit of
documents
s.228(3) - Accounts of any
Proper Officer to be open to
inspection by any Member of
the Authority
s.229(5) - Certification of
Photographic copies of
Documents
s.234 - Authentication of
Documents

s.236(9) - To send copies of
byelaw for Parish records
s.236(10) - To send copies of
byelaws to the County Council
s.238 - Certification of byelaws

Chief Executive

Director of Resources

Director of People and Place

Head of Development
Management
Monitoring Officer
Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager
Deputy s.151 Officer

Chief Executive
Monitoring Officer
Director of Resources

Any member of Management
Team and Democratic and
Electoral Services Manager
Officer authorised in that
connection by a general
delegation or otherwise, or the
Monitoring Officer in the
absence of such authority
Monitoring Officer

Deputy Monitoring Officer

Chief Executive

Monitoring Officer

Chief Executive

Any member of Management
Team
Chief Executive

s.248 - Keeping of Roll of
Freeman
Schedule 12, Para 4 (2)(b) Chief Executive
Signature of summonses to
Monitoring Officer
Council Meetings
Schedule 12, Para 4(3) Democratic and Electoral
Receipt of notice regarding
Services Manager
address to which summonses
to meetings are to be sent
Schedule 14, Para 25(7) Chief Executive
Certifying resolutions applying
or dis-applying provisions of
Public Health Acts 1875-1961
Local Government Act 1974
Proper Officer’s Functions
Proper Officer
s.30 - To give public notice of
Monitoring Officer
reports by the Local
Commissioner
Representation of the People Acts 1983

Monitoring Officer

Proper Officer’s Functions
s.8 - Electoral Registration
Officer

Alternative Proper Officer
Deputy Returning Officer
(Democratic and Electoral

Proper Officer
Chief Executive

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Monitoring Officer
Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager

Director of Resources

Alternative Proper Officer
Officer nominated by the
Monitoring Officer as
Deputy Monitoring Officer

Page 17

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 24

s.35 - Returning Officer

Chief Executive

s.81 - To receive returns as to
election expenses

Chief Executive

s.52(3) - To act as Deputy
Electoral Registration Officer

Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager

Services Manager) or as
delegated by the Returning
Officer
Deputy Returning Officer
(Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager) or as
delegated by the Returning
Officer
Deputy Returning Officer
(Democratic and Electoral
Services Manager) or as
delegated by the Returning
Officer

Local Government Finance Act 1988
Proper Officer’s Functions
s.114 - Duty to report etc.

Proper Officer
Director of Resources

Alternative Proper Officer
Deputy s.151 Officer

s.116 - To notify the Council’s
Director of Resources
Auditor of a Council meeting to
be held under s.15 (meeting to
consider any report of the
DFO under s.114)

Officer nominated as
Deputy s.151 Officer by the
s. 151 Officer

Local Government and Housing Act 1989
Proper Officer’s Functions
s.4 - Head of Paid Service
s.5 - Monitoring Officer

Proper Officer
Chief Executive Interim Head
of Paid Service
Head of Legal and
Governance

s. 19 and regulations made
Monitoring Officer
thereunder - Notices of
Members’ Interests.
s.2 and s.3 - Preparation and
Democratic and Electoral
deposit of politically restricted
Services Manager
posts and issue of certificate in
respect of politically restricted
posts

Alternative Proper Officer

Deputy Monitoring Officer
as appointed by the
Monitoring Officer
Deputy Monitoring Officer
as appointed by the
Monitoring Officer
Deputy Monitoring Officer
as appointed by the
Monitoring Officer

Party Wall Act 1996
Proper Officer’s Functions
s.10(8) - Appointing Officer

Proper Officer
Head of Building Control

Alternative Proper Officer
Director of People and
Place

Proper Officer
Dr. John Astbury

Alternative Proper Officer
Grainne Nixon
Dr. Nicola Schinaia and
other appropriate persons
from UK Health Security

Public Health Legislation
Proper Officer’s Functions
s. 74 - Public Health (Control
of Diseases) Act 1984 and
Health Protection Regulations
2010

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 18

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 25

Public Health Act 1936
s. 84 and 85 - (Cleansing or
destruction of filthy or
verminous premises, clothing
and articles)

Dr. John Astbury

Public Health Act 1961
s.37 - (Disinfection of
verminous articles offered for
sale)
Sections 48, 59 and 61-62
Public Health (Control of
Disease) Act 1984; The
Health Protection
(Notification) Regulations
2010

(As above)

Agency (UKHSA) as
notified by the Monitoring
Officer
Grainne Nixon
Dr. Nicola Schinaia and
other appropriate persons
from UK Health Security
Agency (UKHSA) as
notified by the Monitoring
Officer
(As above)

(As above)

(As above)

Regulations 2 (Duty to notify
suspected disease, infection of
contamination in patients) and
3 and 6 (receipt and disclosure
of notification of suspected
notifiable disease, infection or
contamination in patients and
dead persons)
Legal responsibilities and
(As above)
duties of local authorities
in connection with
communicable disease
control and the protection
of public health are derived
from the provisions of

(As above)

The Public Health (Control
of Disease) Act 1984 (as
amended by the Health and
Social Care Act 2008;
Health and Social Care Act
2008;
The Health Protection
(Local Authority Powers
Regulations 2010; and
The Health Protection (Part
2A Orders) Regulations 2010
to make notifications and
apply controls as required
Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Page 19

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 26
Local Government Act 2000 and Regulations made thereunder
Proper Officer Functions
Proper Officer
Alternative Proper Officer
Monitoring Officer
Deputy Monitoring Officer
as appointed by the
Monitoring Officer
Freedom of Information Act 2000
Proper Officer Functions
Proper Officer
Alternative Proper Officer
s. 36 the ‘qualified person’
Monitoring Officer
Chief Executive (in the
absence of the Monitoring
Officer)
Miscellaneous
Proper Officer Functions
Proper Officer
Alternative Proper Officer
Section 41 Local
Monitoring Officer
Deputy Monitoring Officer
Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976
Certifying true copies of
minutes
Section 321(3) Highways Act Director of People and Place
1980
Certifying copies of approved
plans
Section 2 Planning (Listed
Head of Development
Buildings and Conservation Management
Areas) Act 1990
Lists of protected buildings
Section 4 Housing Act 2004
Head of Programme
Management and Climate
Change
Proper Officer Functions
Proper Officer
Alternative Proper Officer
Officers authorised to issue
Head of Legal and
Director of Resources
authorisations to carry out
Governance
directed surveillance or to use
covert human intelligence
sources under Part II of the
Regulations of Investigatory
Powers Act 2000
Chief Executive
(including Juvenile or
Vulnerable Persons CHIS or
the acquisition of confidential
information)

Service of Improvement and
Prohibition Notices under the
Health and Safety at Work
etc. Act 1974
Senior Information Risk Officer

The Director of People and
Place is the RIPA Monitoring
Officer
Head of Public Protection and
all Environmental Health
Officers having satisfied the
Council as to their
competence.
Director of Resources

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Such other persons as may
be appointed from time to
time

Such other persons as may
be appointed from time to
time
Page 20

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1
Page 27
Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act 2000 Chapter II
Designated Person (Access
and Disclosure of
Communications Data)
The Money Laundering
Regulations 2007

Head of Legal and
Governance

Such other persons as may
be appointed from time to
time

Director of Resources

Anti-Social Behaviour,
Crime and Policing Act 2014
Section 104(3)
Point of Contact
Data Protection – To act as
the Council’s designated Data
Protection Officer as required
by the Data Protection Act
2018, s.69 to undertake the
duties set out in Section 71 of
the Data Protection Act 2018
and Article 39 of the General
Data Protection Regulations
(GDPR) EU 2016/679.

Monitoring Officer

Such other persons as may
be appointed from time to
time
Such other persons as may
be appointed from time to
time

Head of Legal and
Governance

Part 3(2) Version 10 (March 2022)

Such other persons as may
be appointed from time to
time

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2
Page 29

Barrow Borough Council
14 September 2022
LGR – update and Appointment of Interim Head of Paid
Service (Addendum Report)

Report from:

Chief Executive

Report Author:

Debbie Storr

Wards:

(All Wards);

1.0

Summary and Conclusions

1.1

To provide an update on the appointment of an Interim Head of Paid Service.

2.0
2.1

Recommendation
It is recommended that Council:(1) Receive the update; and
(2) Agree the appointment of David Parr OBE as Interim Head of Paid
Service as detailed within the report on a temporary basis, with
immediate effect, for a period to 31 March 2023.
(3) That the Constitution be amended to include delegations to the Interim
Head of Paid Service and updates to the Proper Officer appointments
as detailed within the report

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

This report is an addendum to the report issued with the agenda. It updates
members on the outcome of the interview process which has now concluded with
the recommendation being that David Parr is appointed as the Interim Head of
Paid Service to support the Council whilst it transitions to the new Westmorland
and Furness Council.

3.2

In 2019 David was awarded an OBE for services to local government in Cheshire
and is an experienced Chief Executive. Between 2004 and 2022 he was Chief
Executive of Halton Council. In 2001, before moving to Halton, David became
Chief Executive at Macclesfield Borough Council where he led a major
organisational change preparing the Council for Local Government
reorganisation.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Page 31

PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
Council
14 September 2022
Community Governance Review
Report from:

Head of Legal and Governance

Report Author:

Debbie Storr/Samantha Bagshaw

Wards:

All wards in the unparished area

1.0

Summary and Conclusions

1.1

At its meeting on 19 July 2022, Council resolved that the draft recommendations
be agreed and published as part of a Second Stage Public Consultation process,
along with the revised timetable for the consultation. This report updates Members
on the responses to the Second Stage Public Consultation process and
consequently, the draft final recommendations from the CGR Working Group. The
report also sets out the provisions of a Re-organisation Order and which, once
approved, will be forwarded to the Shadow Westmorland and Furness Council to
consider for the formal creation of a Barrow Town Council.

1.2

The purpose of this report is to consider the Final Recommendations of the CGR
Working Group having considered the results of the Second Stage Consultation
with residents, stakeholders and other local authorities.

2.0

Recommendations
It is recommended that Council agree and recommend to the Shadow
Authority for Westmorland and Furness that they:
(1)

Agree that a new Parish Council be established for the unparished
area of Barrow;

(2)

Subject to Agreement of (1) above that the following be agreed:(a)
(b)

The new Parish be named Barrow;
The new Parish of Barrow should have a Parish Council and be
called Barrow Parish Council (noting the name and style of the
new council is a matter for the new Parish Council to decide the Council cannot confer the title of “Town Council” as, under

Agenda Item 7
Page 32
legislation, that is a matter to be resolved by the new parish
council once formed);
(c)

The ordinary year of election will be 2023 and then every four
years after;

(d)

The new Parish of Barrow be comprised of the existing eleven
wards of Barrow Borough Council covering the unparished
area of the borough, namely: Walney North, Walney South,
Barrow Island, Hindpool, Central, Ormsgill, Parkside, Risedale,
Hawcoat, Newbarns and Roosecote;

(e) The electoral arrangements that should apply for the new Parish
of Barrow will be that:
i. The Parish be divided into wards;
ii. The Wards for the Parish shall be those which apply for
the Borough Council namely: Walney North, Walney
South, Barrow Island, Hindpool, Central, Ormsgill,
Parkside, Risedale, Hawcoat, Newbarns and Roosecote;
iii. The number of Parish Councillors to be elected for each
Ward shall be: 21 made up of:
Walney North,
2
Walney South
2
Barrow Island
1
Hindpool
2
Central
2
Ormsgill
2
Parkside
2
Risedale
2
Hawcoat
2
Newbarns
2
Roosecote
2
(3)

That in accordance with regulation 3 of the Local Government Finance
(New Parishes) (England) Regulations 2008), the recommended
budget to be incorporated in the Reorganisation Order for the Parish
Council for the financial year 2023/24 is £387,700;

(4)

That Council note the draft reorganisation order attached to this report
and that the Monitoring Officer is authorised to take such steps as
may be requested of it by the Westmorland and Furness Shadow
Authority or Council (as the case may be) to finalise the Order and
implement a decision to create a Barrow parish council; and

Agenda Item 7
Page 33
(5)

That the (Shadow) Westmorland and Furness Council be asked to
agree that a new Parish Council shall be accommodated in the Barrow
Town Hall and that the Council be further asked to make such
accommodation available initially at a peppercorn rent and subject to
such other terms and conditions as the parties may agree.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

At the meeting of Council on 19 July 2022, it was agreed that the draft
recommendations of the CGR be published as part of a Second Stage Public
Consultation process.

3.2

In addition to holding the second stage of the public consultation, the CGR
Working Group members began to consider additional matters that needed
consideration as part of the preparation for creating a town council.

4.0

The Second Stage Consultation

4.1

The consultation on the draft recommendations ran from Monday 25th July to
Friday 26th August inclusive. All residents of the unparished area of Barrow
received a letter from Barrow Borough Council explaining the purpose of the
second round of consultation. They also received information on how to take part
in the consultation.

4.2

Once the consultation closed, all submissions and representations were
considered and recorded. The members of the CGR WG had sight of and
considered the responses received (See Appendix 1).

4.3

Of the 57 written submissions received: 



4.4

The consultation indicated that the majority of respondents were in support of the
draft recommendations and of creating a town council for Barrow. However, the
key concerns expressed by the respondents, who were either not in favour to the
creation of a new parish/town council or were neutral about it, were focused
around two main issues:



4.5

36 were in favour of the draft recommendations;
10 against; and
11 neutral comments.

The number of councillors proposed for the new authority; and
The potential cost to tax payers of the new authority.

In light of the submissions the number of councillors proposed for the parish/town
council was reviewed. The working group looked again at ward boundaries and
discussed the potential workload of the councillors as well as the potential cost
implications of the number of councillors. They also considered the challenges of
filling every council seat. There was a strong sense from the members present
that whilst they understood that there was some disquiet reflected in the
consultation responses regarding the number of councillors proposed for the new

Agenda Item 7
Page 34
council, that 15 seats, based on the Westmorland and Furness (WFC) ward
boundaries, was too low.
The reason was that the WFC wards were considered too large to be sufficiently
effective as local council wards and that three councillors drawn from such a
large area might result in councillors not having the local knowledge, they would
need to represent their electors. It was also considered that there was a
misapprehension regarding the cost of parish/town councillors in that in general
they are not paid an allowance unlike councillors on principal authorities. The
judgment is 15 councillors are the minimum number required to provide efficient
and effective governance of the area, best calculated to respond to and meet the
needs of local people.
4.6

It was also noted that the Local Government Boundary Commission for England
will be carrying out a review of ward boundaries of the unitary authority in the near
future (as is required in areas that have been through Local Government
Reorganisation). It may be that at this time, if there is support to review some of
the ward boundaries of the new parish council, that it could be looked at as part of
that review.

4.7

The group therefore agreed that the recommendation for electoral arrangements
for the proposed Barrow Parish/Town Council should remain at 21 councillors and
based on the ward boundaries of the current Barrow Borough Council.

4.8

The majority of the submissions that were in support of the creation of a parish
council for Barrow cited local representation as essential for the town moving
forward. There were expressions of optimism that a new parish council could be
a positive change for the area and there was a definite view that Barrow should
have the same democratic governance arrangements as the rest of the new
unitary area.

4.9

Benefits of creating a local council.

4.10

The review has concluded that a parish (town) council for Barrow will bring the
benefit of creating a local, democratically elected voice for the town. It would be
effective and efficient. Barrow is a significant urban area in Westmorland and
Furness with substantial employment, clear aspirations and potential for growth,
a parish council would give a clear strong voice for the Westmorland and
Furness Area. In addition to councillors on the unitary authority, residents can
elect local councillors to address local issues..

4.11

The benefits parish councils can bring include:




They have local knowledge and care about their own town or village.
They can raise money to fund local projects, not just through tax but
through grants and other funding streams.
They give local people a voice by being a consultee in planning matters
and on major projects.

Agenda Item 7
Page 35




They maintain the civic traditions of the town by electing a mayor who can
represent the town at civic functions across the county.
They can deliver some local services more cheaply than the larger
authorities such as looking after parks and green spaces, public toilets
and the cleanliness of the area.
They can work in partnership with the unitary authority and other
organisations such as charities to improve the town.

5.0

Recommendations

5.1

In carrying out the Community Governance Review, the Local Government and
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (“the 2007 Act”) requires the principal
council to have regard to the identities and interest of the community and for
community governance to be effective and convenient. This means that
Community Governance arrangements should reflect and be sufficiently
representative of people living across the whole community and not just a discrete
cross-section of community.

5.2

The Council should have regard to the results of the consultation but is not bound
to follow them. However, the overwhelming result of the consultation is in favour
of the proposal to establish a town (parish) council.

5.3

Under Section 87 of the 2007 Act, a community governance review must make
recommendations as to what new parish or parishes (if any) should be constituted
in the area under review. If the review results in a recommendation to create a
parish; the review must also make recommendations about the name of the new
parish; as to whether or not the new parish should be a parish council; and as to
whether or not the new parish should have one of the alternative styles.

5.4

Under Section 89 of the 2007 Act, the review must also make recommendations
as to what electoral arrangements should apply to any new parish council. It is
not open to the Council to create a town council for Barrow by name. Under
Section 245 of the Local Government Act 1972 the adoption of such a name
would be a matter for the new parish council to resolve, if one is created. This
report therefore refers throughout to the “parish council” even though it is widely
understood that any parish council for Barrow would choose to call itself a town
council.

6.0

Name of the Parish Council

6.1

As mentioned above, it is not open to the Council to create or designate an area
as a town council. However, under the 2007 Act it can designate a new parish
council with an “alternative style” namely:


Village

Agenda Item 7
Page 36


6.2

Community
Neighbourhood

Notwithstanding these alternative styles, it is recommended that the name of the
new parish council shall be “Barrow Parish Council”
As stated in paragraph 5.4 it would then fall to the new parish council to resolve,
under section 245(6) of the 1972 Act to have the status of a town and to adopt the
name of town council.

6.3

It is proposed that the wards within the parish of Barrow shall bear the same name
as the current Barrow Borough Council wards pending any future review.

7.0

Electoral Arrangements

7.1

As part of the CGR, full Council is required to consider the number of councillors
for the new parish council. Section 95 of the 2007 Act requires the principal
authority to consider the following questions when deciding to recommend that a
parish should, or should not be divided into wards for the purposes of electing
councillors: a) Whether the number, or distribution, of the local government electors for the
parish would make a single election of councillors impracticable or
inconvenient; and
b) Whether it is desirable that any area or areas of the parish should be separately
represented on the council.

7.2

If Council decides that the proposed parish should be divided into wards, it must
have regard to the following factors:
a)
b)

c)
d)

the number of local government electors for the parish;
any change in the number, or distribution, of the local government electors
which is likely to occur in the period of five years beginning with the day
when the review starts;
the desirability of fixing boundaries which are, and will remain easily
identifiable;
any local ties which will be broken by the fixing of any particular boundaries.

7.3

Whatever number of councillors are selected for the proposed parish council it is
apparent that the number and distribution of local government electors for Barrow
would make a single election of councillors impracticable or inconvenient. It is
recommended that the proposed parish council adopts the current Barrow-inFurness Borough Council wards for Barrow as set out in the recommendations.

7.4

The CGR is also required to consider the number of councillors for the proposed
new parish council. The legal requirement is that a parish council must have a
minimum of five members; there is no upper limit in law.

Agenda Item 7
Page 37
7.5

The proposed number of parish councillors has been carefully considered by the
working group following the second round of consultation. For the reasons
provided in paragraphs 4.5 above, it is recommended that the proposed new
parish should have 21 members, with the 11 wards in the parish being identical to
the existing Borough Council Wards in Barrow with number of councillors as
shown in recommendation 2(e)(iii).

8.0

Initial Precept and Budget for the new council

8.1

Should approval be given to the creation of a new parish council, with elections to
the new parish council to be held in May 2023, Regulation 3(2) of the Local
Government Finance (New Parishes) (England) Regulations 2008 requires the
Council to anticipate a precept from the new parish council for 2023/24. The
amount must be stated in the reorganisation order. Regulation 4 requires this to
be a special item, i.e., it will be charged on only council tax payers in Barrow.
Regulation 3(2) also requires the reorganisation order to state the budget
requirement for the parish council (this will be the same figure as the precept). It
further provides that, in calculating its budget requirements for that year, the parish
council cannot calculate an amount that is greater than the amount stated in the
reorganisation order.

8.2

Because an entirely new parish council is being created where none currently
exists, the regime of council tax referenda for “excessive” increases in council tax
does not apply.

8.3

2021-22 national figures for local (parish and town councils) show the average B
and D precept charged by local precepting bodies (including local councils) for
2021-22 was £71.86.

8.4

Work in considering an initial precept is shown at Appendix 3 which provides an
initial figure for a 2023/24 budget and how those proposals have been arrived at.
It is recommended that the initial budget for consideration is £387,700.

8.5

The proposed parish council, once granted parish council status, would have the
right to decide their level of precept in perpetuity. However, for the purposes of
planning the number and nature of services it provides, it is important that its
budget for the first year is set early on to assist the planning process.

8.6

The final decision on the budget for 2023/24 will be taken when the reorganisation
order is finalised.

9.0

The Re-Organisation Order

9.1

If Full Council and subsequently the Shadow Authority for Westmorland and
Furness agrees to create a new parish council, a Reorganisation Order must be
made. A copy of the draft Re-organisation Order is attached to this report (see
Appendix 2). The Order must contain the budgetary requirement for the proposed

Agenda Item 7
Page 38
Parish Council in its first year. The Order must also contain the necessary and
incidental provisions relating to the establishment of the Parish Council.
9.2

The reorganisation order must become effective by no later than 1 April in any
year if elections are to be held for the new parish council in May.

9.3

The Order must contain the description of any land or property which is proposed
to be transferred to the new Barrow Parish Council. After discussions with the
CGR Working Group and Shadow Authority Portfolio Holder, it is not intended to
propose the transfer of any land or property to the parish council except for certain
ceremonial chains and symbols of office and related chattels listed under
paragraph 9.5 of this report. A request is however made for the parish council to
be given user rights to Barrow Town Hall. The transfer of any land, property rights
and liabilities would be subject to further agreements between Barrow Parish
Council and Westmorland and Furness Council.

9.4

Regarding allotments, it was noted by the Working Group, that the parish council,
on creation will become the allotment authority for the parished area. This gives
it the duty to ensure that allotments are provided if requested but does not require
it to directly own or run the allotments. However, it will be for the members of the
new parish council to decide the future management of the towns allotments and
to enter into negotiations with the new unitary authority.

9.5

It is considered that the following items should be transferred to the parish council
and for these to be incorporated into a draft reorganisation order:
Mayoral Chain of Office
Ceremonial Mace
Mayoress’s Chain of Office
Presidential Chain of Office for the Master Butcher and
Pork Butcher
Mayoral Car Registration Plate
Councillors’ robes and any associated accoutrements

9.6

The Mayoral and the Deputy Mayoral chains of Barrow Borough Council and the
ceremonial mace are important historic artefacts of the Barrow mayoralty and will
be used if the new parish council chooses to call itself a town council and make its
Chair the Mayor of Barrow Town Council. This transfer is contained in a schedule
to the draft reorganisation order. It is recommended that the transfer date takes
effect after the election of the new Councillors in May 2023 when insurance cover
has been arranged. There is no use which may be made by the Parish Council
prior to the election. The date also takes account of the current usage of the chain
of office by the Mayor of Barrow Borough Council.

10.0

Future Funding and Agreements

Agenda Item 7
Page 39
10.1

This will not form part of the reorganisation order. A number of detailed matters
will need to be addressed through an agreement or agreements under Section 99
of the 2007 Act. Section 99 provides for public bodies affected by a reorganisation
order to make agreements with respect of any property, income, rights, liabilities
and expenses and any financial arrangements between parties to the agreement.
Westmorland and Furness Council needs to protect its fiduciary position and
rights. There would also be implications for the practical operation of assets and
facilities. User rights (or other appropriate arrangement) are being requested in
the interim for the use of the Town Hall building.

10.2

The alternative would be to endeavour to settle all these matters before the
reorganisation order is made or the new parish council is elected. The intention is
that long term arrangements would be developed over a period of time as the new
Westmorland and Furness Council is established. In respect of this it would fall
on the WAF Cabinet to enter any such agreements.

10.3

The future of long term arrangements provides the opportunity for Westmorland
and Furness Council to consider its relationships with parishes and town councils
across the district area, as it becomes established. It would also enable time for
the proposed new parish council to consider what it wished to do for the future.
Any staffing consequences would have to be considered at the time in accordance
with employment law, including TUPE regulations.

The current planning assumptions are
Action
Approval of reorganisation order by
W&F
Reorganisation order comes into effect
Elections to Barrow Parish Council
First meeting of newly elected Barrow
Parish Council to take place within 14
days of the declaration of the result and
WAF is responsible for arranging the
first meeting

Dates
18 October 2022
by 1 April 2023
May 2023
May 2023

11.0

Alternative Options

11.1

As part of the review, the option to create Charter Trustees for Barrow was
considered as an alternative, or an interim provision, to creating a new local
council. Members supported the decision to inform government that the provision
of Charter Trustees may be necessary should it prove impossible to create a town
council due to reorganisation of local government. It is intended that a subsequent
‘mopping up order’ will make provisions to deal with ancillary matters, including
the provision for Charter Trustees should they be needed.

Agenda Item 7
Page 40
11.2

The options leading to the recommendations in this report have been thoroughly
explored through the consultation process.

12.0

Contribution to Council Plan Priorities

12.1

A new local council will help delivery of local governance within the borough and
contribute to the priorities and objectives of the Westmorland and Furness Council
moving forward.

13.0

Implications
Financial, Resources and Procurement

13.1

Westmorland and Furness Council will need to ensure that there is an on-going
relationship and costs in dealing with the proposed parish council met from its
resource framework.

13.2

The costs of administering the proposed new council between April and May 2023
(including the cost of enabling the council tax computer software to enable
effective administration and collection of the additional precept) are yet to be
established.

13.3

Due to the elections for Westmorland and Furness Council being held in May 2022
it is not possible to hold the elections with the principal authority for 2023. The
Council can recharge the costs of elections to a parish council and the intention is
to recover the additional costs of election through the parish precept when the
proposed new parish council will have resources at its disposal. For the avoidance
of doubt where the parish elections are stand-alone polls, the parish council will
be solely responsible for holding the cost of holding those elections. If combined
with other polls those costs shall be shared in accordance with any rules/guidance
in force at that time.

13.4

The impact of creating a parish council for Barrow was drawn to the attention of
electors through the consultation process.

14.0

Legal

14.1

In undertaking a CGR the Council has a number of statutory duties as set out in
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. Under Section
93(3) of the Act, the Council must consult local government electors for the area
under review and any other person or body (including a local authority) which
appears to the Council to have an interest in the review. This was complied with
as set out in the report.

14.2

Under Section 93(4) of the Act the Council must have regard to the need to secure
that community governance within the area under review: a)
reflects the identifies and interests of the community in that area, and
b)
is effective and convenient.

Agenda Item 7
Page 41
These are therefore key tests that must be applied when considering
representations and proposals as part of the CGR.
14.3

Under Section 93(5) of the Act the Council must take account of other
arrangements (other than e.g., parish councils) that have already been made or
could be made, for the purposes of community representation or community
engagement in the area under review. The review has had regard to the guidance
from Government on this, and the Cumbria (Structural Changes) Order 2022 under
which Barrow Borough Council will cease to exist from 1 April 2023.

14.4

A new parish council is created by means of a Re-organisation Order. The Reorganisation Order should be made, ideally, in October of any year. The new
parish council is created with effect from 1 April in the year concerned although
the first election of the parish council will not take place until the following May.
The Order will calculate the budget requirements for the first year of operation of
the new parish council.

14.5

It is for the Shadow Westmorland and Furness Council to make the final
resolutions. Once the order is made, the Council must deposit at its main office a
copy of the reorganisation order and the map must be available for public
inspection at all reasonable times and the Council must publicise its availability for
inspection. The Council must also notify the relevant agencies.

15.0

Local Government Reorganisation

15.1

The process of Local Government Reorganisation was a key factor underpinning
actions taken – crucially regarding the timing of the Community Governance
Review given that Barrow Borough Council would cease to exist on 31 st March
2023. Knowing that the new Shadow Authority for Westmorland and Furness
would make the final decision on whether to create a town council for Barrow,
underlined the need for a clear mandate for the creation of a new authority to be
given by the people of Barrow.

16.0

Equality and Diversity

16.1

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?
Yes, the report has no detrimental impact on service users showing any of the
protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

17.0

Risk
The risks identified through the process are as set out in Appendix 4.

Contact Officers
dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report

Agenda Item 7
Page 42
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Second Stage Consultation Summary of Results Table

2

Draft Re-organisation Order for Barrow Parish Council

3

Draft Report on the proposed budget for 2023/2024

4

Risk Assessment

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available
1 Previous reports to Council re www.barrowbc.gov.uk
Community Governance Review

Agenda Item 7
Page 43

APPENDIX 1
Community Governance Review
Stage 2 Consultation Results and Summary
57 Submissions Received

In support of the draft recommendations:
The Second Stage of the Community Governance Review Public Consultation closed
on Friday 26 August 2022.
36 submissions were received from the public in support of the creation of a town
council for Barrow.
The main reasons given were that a town council would give Barrow a local voice when
the Borough Council is abolished.
Date

Comments

16/8

Thinks a new town council important to give Barrow a local voice
and to be able to act more quickly than W&FC.

9/8

Very positive response to the creation of a new town council

5/8

Expressing support for the new town council

15/8

In favour of all the draft recommendations

26/7

In support of all recommendations

5/8

In support of all recommendations

5/8

In support of all recommendations

5/8

In support of all recommendations

3/8

In support – seems like a fair arrangement and gives Barrow a
voice in the face of the downgrade

2/8

In favour of a town council and supports recommendations (10)

2/8

In favour of a town council and supports recommendations

2/8

Agrees with recommendations except that Barrow Island should
have 2 councillors

2/8

Agrees with recs

Agenda Item 7
Page 44
2/8

Agree with TC but thinks Walney only needs one cllr – concerns
about payments to councillors

1/8

Yes, need to have local people saying whats best for Barrow

31/7

V strongly in favour of town council as local people know best

31/7

Support recommendations but not sure why only 1 rep for Barrow
Island

30/7

Supports tc – but thinks any future review should create single
councillor wards – though he thinks 21 cllrs is the right
number

30/7

Strongly in favour of a town council

30/7

In favour of all recommendations as TC needed to give Barrow a
voice (20)

28/7

Supports the town council and the recommendations

28/7

in favour of creating a single Barrow Town Council. To ensure
that we have local councillors representing the wards,
understanding the issues, being part of the community
and readily accessible.

28/7

Supports the recommendations

27/7

Entirely supportive

28/7

Agree that you should create a town council for Barrow

28/7

Having read the recommendations carefully only suggestion is
that the name of Furness Parish Council should be
considered

27/7

Agree with all 6 recommendations

26/7

Agree with all 6 recommendations

No date by Agree but feels that 21 cllrs too many that 11 would be
letter
acceptable.
25/8

In favour of the recommendations (30)

Cabinet Members were unanimous in their support of the
proposals and welcomed the review recognising the
Shadow
importance of strong and effective local governance
WFC
arrangements in providing the public with a sense of place
and continuity with the past.
25/8

The Shadow Authority is committed to working with local parish
and town councils going forward and looks forward to the
conclusion of the Review.

Agenda Item 7
Page 45
17/8

I agree , and Barrow is reducing in population anyway, so take
this opportunity to reduce the number of wards.
Bearing in mind the responses received from SLDC when an
Ulverston project needs approval, I cannot see the benefit
of having even more discontented councillors sitting on a
Barrow council.
Just keep it lean and mean .

23/8

Yes, fully support a new town council for Barrow

24/8

Yes, in support but worried about the number of councillors
receiving ‘generous allowances’.

19/8

Yes, agree with the draft recommendations

19/8

Agree with draft recommendations

Against the draft recommendations
Ten submissions against the creation of a town council were received. The main concern
was around the cost and the number of parish councillors to be appointed to the
new parish council.
Date

Comments

12/8

Letter largely refers to LGR – complaining that the abolition of
Barrow BC will take away local decision-making. But
generally complaining about lack of consultation on LGR
and also the CGR

8/8

Opposed to the town council and requesting information on the
result of the consultation
(Also copied to Simon Fell MP)

15/8

Against TC on grounds of increased cost

14/8

Not supportive of the town council but if it is created he believes
that the number of councillors should be further reduced
from 21

2/8

Against the creation of a town council

30/7

Against the creation of a town council – does not think it will be
value for money

Agenda Item 7
Page 46
28/7

Against the town council on the grounds of cost

26/7

Can’t see the point of creating another council for Barrow when
one has just been abolished, broadly against the creation of
a town council

25/7

Against the creation of a town council due to the cost.

22/8

Not in favour of a new town council (unless it is like Askam’s parish
council)

Neutral Comments
Eleven submissions were received that either did not express a clear view on the
specific question of creating a parish/town council for Barrow or raised questions
rather than expressing an explicit view in favour or against.
Date

Comments

15/8

Various suggestions about the process

14/8

Wants cllrs on town council to reside in the wards they represent
so that they have very local knowledge

25/7

No mention of the town council but feels his area (St Quintin
Avenue) is unfairly neglected

26/7

Wondering if the new TC will make any improvements to
services?

26/7

Confused as to what the new town council will do and why it is
needed

3/8

Complaints against Barrow BC with the view that a town council
can’t be any worse

27/7

Sees value in a genuinely opportunity for change but fears it will
not achieve this.

No date by
letter

Against a town council for wider political reasons – lack of trust
in politics

10/8

Many positive comments but some concerns expressed
including:

Agenda Item 7
Page 47
a) Numerous concerns have been passed to my office
regarding the costs and salaries of staff, and allowances
and expenses for prospective parish councillors.

26/8
18/8

b) I would suggest a careful review of the number of
councillors needed for an effective Town Council, and
also a consideration that a single Town Council for the
borough may not be the best route forward. Many Walney
residents have suggested to me that it would be best
served by its own representation
Would like more info on the Stage 1 result and more info on the
specific comments
Would like more information about the results of Stage 1.

Agenda Item 7
Page 48

APPENDIX 2
DRAFT REORGANISATION ORDER
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007
The Westmorland and Furness (Reorganisation of Community Governance) Order
2022

Made
Coming into force in accordance with article 1(2)

By virtue of Article 17 of the Cumbria (Structural Changes) Order 2022 (the 2022 Order)
the Shadow Authority for Westmorland and Furness has the powers under the 2007
Act to make this Order.
Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council, (“the Borough Council”) in accordance with
section 82 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
(“the 2007 Act”), has undertaken a community governance review and made
recommendations dated [month] [year] to the Shadow Authority for Westmorland and
Furness (“the Shadow Authority”).
Under Article 4 of the 2022 Order, a new district council, to be known as the
Westmorland and Furness Council is to be established as the sole principal authority
for the non-metropolitan district of Westmorland and Furness and Barrow-in-Furness
Borough Council is wound up and dissolved on 1st April 2023.
The Borough Council, in accordance with section 100 of the 2007 Act, has had regard
to guidance issued under that section.
More particularly, in accordance with section 93 of the 2007 Act, the Borough Council
has consulted with the local government electors and other interested persons and has
had regard to the need to secure that community governance reflects the identities and
interests of the community and is effective and convenient.
The Shadow Authority has considered the conclusions of the Community Governance
Review and the Borough Council’s recommendations, and in the exercise of the powers
conferred on it by sections 86, 98(4) and 240(10) of the 2007 Act makes the following
Order.

Agenda Item 7
Page 49
Citation and commencement(a)
1.—

(1) This Order may be cited as the Westmorland and Furness (Reorganisation of
Community Governance) Order 2022.
(2) Subject to paragraphs (3) and (4) below, this Order comes into force on 1st
April 2023.
(3) Article 9 shall come into force on the ordinary date of election of councillors in
2023.
(4) For the purposes of:
(a)

this article;

(b)

article 5; and,

(c)

proceedings preliminary or relating to the election[s] of parish
councillors for the parish of Barrow, to be held on the ordinary day of
election of councillors in 2023;

this Order shall come into force on the day after that on which it is made.

Interpretation
2. In this Order—
“Council” means the Westmorland and Furness Council.
“map” means the map marked “Map referred to in the Westmorland and Furness
(Reorganisation of Community Governance) Order 2022” and deposited in
accordance with section 96(4) of the 2007 Act: and any reference to a numbered
sheet is a reference to the sheet of the map which bears that number;
“new parish” means the parish constituted by article 4;
“ordinary day of election of councillors” has the meaning given by section 37 of
the Representation of the People Act 1983; and
“registration officer” means an officer appointed for the purpose of, and in accordance
with, section 8 of the Representation of the People Act 1983.
Effect of Order
3. This Order has effect subject to any agreement under section 99 (agreements about
incidental matters) of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act
2007 relevant to any provision of this Order.

Agenda Item 7
Page 50
Constitution of a new parish
4.—(1) A new parish, comprising the area outlined with a blue line on the map, shall
be constituted within the area of Westmorland and Furness Council.
(2) The name of the new parish shall be Barrow.

Calculation of budget requirement
5. For the purposes of regulation 3 of the Local Government Finance (New Parishes)
(England) Regulations 2008 there is specified in relation to the parish of Barrow the
sum of £387,700.
Parish council for the parish of Barrow
6.—(1) There shall be a parish council for the parish of Barrow.
(2) The name of that council shall be “Barrow Parish Council”
Elections for the Parish of Barrow
7. (1) The election of all parish councillors for the parish of Barrow shall be first held on
the ordinary date of elections of Councillors in 2023, and every four years thereafter.
(2)

The term of office of every parish councillor elected on the ordinary day of
councillors in 2023 for the parish of Barrow shall be 4 years.

Number of parish councilors for the parish of Barrow
8.

The number of councillors to be elected for the parish of Barrow shall be twenty one
(21).

Wards of the parish of Barrow and number of parish councillors
9.

(1) The parish of Barrow shall be divided into 11 wards which shall be named
Walney North, Walney South, Barrow Island, Hindpool, Central, Ormsgill, Parkside,
Risedale, Hawcoat, Newbarns and Roosecote.

(2)

Each ward shall comprise the area designated on the map by reference to the name
of the ward and demarcated by orange lines. Each ward shall comprise the area
of the Council ward bearing the same name.

Agenda Item 7
Page 51
(3)

The number of councillors to be elected for each ward shall be Walney North - 2,
Walney South - 2, Barrow Island - 1, Hindpool - 2, Central - 2, Ormsgill - 2, Parkside
- 2, Risedale - 2, Hawcoat - 2, Newbarns - 2 and Roosecote – 2.

Annual meeting of parish council
10. The annual meeting of the new parish council in 2023 shall be convened by the
Monitoring Officer of Westmorland and Furness Council. The meeting shall take
place no later than 14 days after the day on which councillors elected to the new
parish council take office.
Electoral Register
11.

the registration officer for the Westmorland and Furness Council shall make such
rearrangement of, or adaptation of, the register of local government electors as may
be necessary for the purposes of, and in consequence of, this Order.

Transfer of property, rights and liabilities
12.

The land, property, rights and liabilities described in Schedules 1 and 2 shall
transfer from Westmorland and Furness Council to the Barrow parish council on the
date specified in column (2) of those Schedules.

Charter Trustees
13. (1) Any Officers appointed by the charter trustees (if any) for the proper discharge of
their functions who hold office immediately before the date of dissolution of the
charter trustees (“the date of dissolution”) shall by virtue of this Order be transferred
on the date of dissolution and on the same terms and conditions of appointment to
the employment of the parish council.
(2)

Any powers to appoint local officers of dignity exercisable by the charter trustees (if
any) immediately before the date of dissolution shall be exercisable by the parish
council.

(3)

Any functions which would have been exercisable in relation to the account of the
charter trustees, or, (as the case may be), their responsible finance officer if the
charter trustees had not been dissolved shall on and after the date of dissolution
be exercisable by the parish council or, as the case may be, the parish council’s
responsible financial officer.

Agenda Item 7
Page 52
Order date
15.

1 April 2023 is the order date for the purposes of the Local Government (Parishes
and Parish Councils)(England) Regulations 2008.

sealed with the seal (or signed by authorised officers) of the Council on the
of

Signature…..

day

Agenda Item 7
Page 53

SCHEDULE 1
#’
LAND AND PROPERTY TO BE TRANSFERRED
N/A

SCHEDULE 2
HISTORICAL AND CEREMONIAL PROPERTY TO BE
TRANSFERRED
Date
Historic and Ceremonial property to be transferred
Mayoral Chain of Office
Ceremonial Mace
*May 2023
Mayoress’s Chain of Office
Presidential Chain of Office for the Master Butcher and Pork Butcher
Mayoral Car Registration Plate
Councillors’ robes and any associated accoutrements

Agenda Item 7
Page 54

APPENDIX 3
Barrow Parish Council Budget 2023 – 2024
1.

Barrow Parish Council Draft Budget

1.1

Below is information to consider a budget for the new parish council for Barrow
for 2023 – 24.

Set-up Costs
1.4

Given that the parish council is not going to be delivering services in its first
year, nor is it taking on significant assets, it is proposed that the interim clerk be
appointed from 1 April 2023 for a period of 6 months. Their initial tasks will be to
prepare paperwork for the inaugural meeting of the council in May, to set up the
parish council’s office and prepare a website as well as announcing the creation
of the new authority to the community. There are no set up costs additional to the
draft budget for 2023-24. The clerk is considered to be ‘interim’ as it is for the
newly elected councillors to undertake a recruitment process to appoint a
permanent Parish/Town Clerk.

Year One Costs
1.5

The costs of being in business are the clerk and other officers’ salaries, office
costs, audit, setting up an office etc. The salary for the Clerk is based on the
National Joint Council’s agreed pay scales. The pay scale is determined by
the likely size of the council’s budget and the number of electors it serves as
well as the number of staff and committees it is likely to have.

1.6

One of the challenges that the parish council will face is the cost of the election
of the parish council. It was hoped that some of this cost would be shared with
the new unitary authority, but this is unlikely to happen. 2023 is the only year
this will occur as from 2027, there will be alignment with the unitary authority
and costs will be split. Other factors include a required contingency fund,
buying or renting software such as accounting and office software. For a larger
council, internal and external audit costs are significant as are the costs of
buying good quality IT equipment that will last.

1.7

Service Provision – there are no specific services being delivered by the town
council in the first year, but it is envisaged that the councillors will be busy
entering into negotiations with the principal authority, engaging with the
community about their priorities for service delivery and asset management,
plus getting to grips with setting up and operating committees including a
planning committee. Every planning application has a 21 day period of
consultation and some local councils choose to hold their planning meetings
every fortnight to ensure that they never miss the opportunity to comment.

1.8

However, if the 2023-24 budget did not include any budget for services, the
new council would not be able to provide any it wishes to provide. It is therefore

Agenda Item 7
Page 55
suggested that the budget includes a sum to support projects and deliver some
small projects itself. It is for members to determine what is an appropriate sum
to include – the figure of £50,000 is suggested. Also, any provision which is
not fully used can go into the parish council’s reserves.
1.9

Training – this is also an important part of the first year’s activities. Every
councillor will need to be trained. The legislation that applies to the first tier of
local government i.e. town and parish councils, is different to that of the
principal authorities and even experienced councillors need to attend training
to understand the key differences.

1.10

Revenue Reserve – All local authorities need a revenue reserve to enable
them to cope with unexpected events/opportunities during the year. This is
particularly important for Barrow Parish Council, as the annual precept will, at
least initially, be its only source of income and it will not be able to raise
additional income during the year. It is suggested that a reserve of £20,000 is
created.

1.11

Summary Budget 2023-24
With a general reserve of £20,000 and including the cost of the parish
elections, at an estimated cost of £100,000 the proposed budget would be:
£387,700(see the budget below).

1.12

With a tax base of 16,158.26 (December 2021), the above budget total would
lead to a Council Tax charge for the precept of:
Property Band

£387,700

Cost per week

A
B
C
D
E
F

£16.00
£18.66
£21.33
£23.99
£29.33
£34.66

0.308p
0.359p
0.410p
0.461p
0.564p
0.666p

1.13

This compares to the indicative figure of £20.00 per Band A property in the
consultation literature.

1.14

Possible Impact of Restrictions on Future Council Tax Increases

1.15

For several years there has been legislation in place which allows Government
to restrict local authority Council Tax increases unless a referendum confirms
any proposed rise above the Government limit. This limit has been 2% in

Agenda Item 7
Page 56
recent years and has only been applied to principal councils, for example,
counties, districts and unitaries. However, under legislation, the restrictions
can be applied to parishes.
1.16

Whilst the Secretary of State has made some suggestions about extending
capping to parishes, the general feeling is that this is unlikely (it hasn’t
happened in the last 10 years). The National Association of Local Councils
report back to government each year on the precept increases across the
parish sector so it seems prudent to ensure that there is some allowance for
project funding if not service delivery. It can be argued that the circumstances
for brand new councils are exceptional too.

1.17

It should also be noted that the 2023-24 budget gives some headroom for the
next year, as one-off costs in relation to the set-up costs and creation of the
reserve would fall out.

1.18

Draft Budget for Barrow Parish Council for 2023- 2024
See below:

Audit and Accountancy

£ 13,000

Banking

£

Equipment/IT

£ 10,600

Insurance

£ 8,000

Legal

£ 3,000

Accommodation, etc.

£ 16,100

Community Consultation

£

Elections

£100,000

Future Elections

£ 10,000

Subscriptions

£ 4,000

Staff

£103,500

Civic Costs

£ 14,000

Community Grants

£ 30,000

Projects

£ 50,000

Reserve

£ 20,000

Provisional Total

£ 387,700

500

5,000

Agenda Item 7
Page 57

Appendix 4
Risk Matrix

Risk
Ref
1

Date

Risk

Sept
2022

That a parish
council is not
created for the
unparished area
of Barrow
borough.

2

Sept
2022

3

Sept
2022

Consequences

As the only
remaining
unparished area in
the new unitary
authority, the
community in the
unparished area of
Barrow will not
have a local voice
through a town or
parish council as is
available to other
communities in the
wider new council
area
That
Recommendations
recommendations not implemented,
may not be
leading to no new
adopted by the
parish council.
new
Westmorland and
Furness Council.
That no parish
That the
council be
unparished area is
created in time
unable to maintain
for elections in
civic, ceremonial
2023.
and other functions
that are connected
with Borough
status.

Mitigation
That a realistic
timetable is set to
ensure the new
authority can be
created within the
required
timeframe.

Ensure full
engagement and
consultation
around the
process.

Action
Plan
Follow
agreed
mitigation

Follow
agreed
mitigation

In the event of no
Follow
parish council
agreed
being created, that mitigation
Charter Trustees
are established as
an interim
measure until such
time that a parish
council is created.
Charter Trustees
can ensure that
civic, ceremonial
and other functions
are continued.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Proposed Barrow Parish Wards

Appendix 1
Page 59

Hawcoat
Ward

Ormsgill
Ward

Walney North
Ward
Newbarns
Ward

Parkside
Ward

Hindpool
Ward

Risedale
Ward
Central
Ward

Barrow Island Ward
Roosecote Ward

Walney South
Ward

Scale : Not to Scale
Grid : None

BOROUGH OF

BARROW IN

This copy has been produced specifically for External use by Barrow Borough Council. No further copies may be made. Reproduced from the 2021 Ordnance Survey mapping with the
permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (c) Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL Licence No LA100016831

Produced on : 05/09/2022

FURNESS

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Page 61

PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
Council
14 September 2022
Medium Term Financial Plan
Report from:

Director of Resources

Report Author:

Director of Resources

Wards:

None

1.0

Summary and Conclusions

1.1

This report updates the Medium Term Financial Plan for 2022-2025.

1.2

The revisions cover the energy market price pressures, the April 2022 pay
award, the direct delivery of the waste service, and the impact on financial
reserves.

2.0
2.1

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Council:1. Approve the revised Medium Term Financial Plan for 2022-2025.
2. Approve the movements in earmarked reserves as at 31 March 2022.
3. Approve the use of the General Fund balance as set out in the report.
4. Endorse the revised lease arrangements for the future depot as specified in
the report.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Energy

3.1.1 The energy market price pressures were reported to the Executive Committee on
the 22 June 2022 and the shortfall in budget was estimated to be £513k for
2022-2023.
3.1.2 The Council purchases energy through Cumbria County Council and the pricing
applies from 1 April 2022 for twelve months.
3.1.3 The energy advisors note that it is expected that energy prices will fall from April
2023, but there is no projection at present.

Agenda Item 8
Page 62
3.2

Waste Service

3.2.1 The projected budget for the direct delivery of the waste service for 2022-2023 is
attached as Appendix 1; the budget for 2022-2023 is a part year plus the
service transition, and the budget for future years is a full year plus the mediumterm assumptions.
3.2.2 The additional budget required for 2022-2023 is £128k for transition that is added
to the £250k previously approved for support; £120k for October to March
service delivery; and around £0.6m for capital outlay in procuring the required
assets.
3.2.3 The capital outlay is to be partly funded from reserves and partly funded from
usable capital receipts and the Capital Programme revised.
3.2.4 There may be further costs that have not yet been identified and the position will
be closely monitored and reported to the Executive Committee as part of
quarterly finance reporting; the Council will gain knowledge in establishing and
reviewing the service.
3.2.5 Apart from the IT capital which the Council is directly procuring, the precise sum
for the other assets is to be determined by valuation prior to the transfer date and
shall be confirmed with the quarterly finance monitoring.
3.2.6 With regard to the waste service there is a variation in the future depot lease to
report from that originally agreed by Council. Heads of Terms were agreed by
Chief Executive decision (in accordance with the constitution) for a 25 year lease
rather than 10 as originally anticipated with break clauses at 5 and 10 years;
either party can break at 15 and 20 years; and 5 year rent reviews.
3.3

Financial Reserves

3.3.1 The Council’s financial reserves were assessed at 31 March 2022 as part of the
closedown process; a large proportion of the financial reserves are held against
existing commitments and specific uses.
3.3.2 The General Fund financial reserves at 31 March 2022 were made up of
individual reserves £9.7m and the fund balance £2.3m; totalling £12m.
3.3.3 It is not expected that the General Fund balance will be called upon during 20222023 however Council is reminded that the balance is £0.4m above the minimum
assessed; access to the fund balance is a matter for Full Council.
3.3.4 The individual reserves are attached as Appendix 2 and show the amounts
committed, those with specific uses, and identifies the unallocated reserves
brought together to create a reserve for direct delivery of the waste service.

Agenda Item 8
Page 63
3.3.5 The outturn for 2021-2022 resulted in an unplanned contribution into reserves of
£513k which has been set aside for the 2022-2023 energy market price
pressures.
3.3.6 There is sufficient in reserves to fund the transition costs and additional costs of
direct delivery of the waste services for 2022-2023 estimated at £1m (waste
service items highlighted in Appendix 2); the future years with full costs fall into
the General Fund deficit.
3.3.7 Where there are opportunities to use in-year underspent amounts within the
General Fund revenue budget (such as staff turnover or higher income), then
those will be used before the financial reserves are drawn.
3.4

Staff Pay

3.4.1 It is likely that the April 2022 pay award will be higher than the original
assumptions used in the 2022-2023 revenue budget and therefore those
assumptions have been revised to reflect the current position; the final position
will appear in the relevant quarterly report.
3.4.2 It is anticipated that the in-year staff turnover shall be sufficient to fund the
additional budget required for 2022-2023.
3.5

Forecasts

3.5.1 The revised Medium Term Financial Plan is attached as Appendix 3 and the
movement in forecasts comes from:

MTFP published March 2022
Staff pay pressures
Energy market pressures
Waste service delivery
Staff turnover
Earmarked reserves
One-off adjustments
MTFP published September 2022

2022-2023 2023-2024
£m
£m
Balanced
0.4
0.3
0.3
0.5
0.5
0.6
1.1
(0.3)
(0.6)
(0.5)
Balanced
2.3

2024-2025
£m
0.5
0.3
0.5
1.1
2.4

3.5.2 Budget savings and additional income to close the budget gap will need to be
brought forward as part of the 2023-2024 budget setting process with
Westmorland and Furness Council.
3.5.3 The staff pay award is not yet finalised; the energy market price pressures may
recover somewhat before 2024-2025; there are opportunities to review the waste
service which may result in cost reductions and income generation.

Agenda Item 8
Page 64
3.5.4 The Council has managed significant budget reductions in previous years and
has established a MTFP budget support reserve to enable transformation to be
realistically paced and sustainable.
3.5.5 At 1 April 2023 the Council’s financial reserves will be amalgamated into
Westmorland and Furness; the identification of a MTFP budget support reserve
will be considered as part of the budget setting process.
3.6

Summary

3.6.1 Council is recommended to approve the revised Medium Term Financial Plan for
2022-2025 which incorporates the significant changes in-year, and the financial
reserves position reflecting the closedown of 2021-2022.
3.6.2 The financial position shall be shared with Westmorland and Furness Council.
4.0

Consultation

4.1

Consultation is not relevant to the recommendations.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

There are no alternative options to set out as the report reflects the financial
implications of matters already reported.

6.0

Contribution to Council Plan Priorities

6.1

The recommendations primarily concern the Council’s financial resilience which
underpins the Council’s operations, strategies and Council Plan.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

The body of the report contains the financial implications including the use of
financial reserves.

Legal
7.2

It is a statutory requirement to set the Council’s budgets, a balanced budget, and
the Council Tax for the following financial year.

Local Government Reorganisation
7.3

The Medium Term Financial Plan and in-year budget monitoring will be shared
with the Shadow Westmorland and Furness Council in order to prepare the
2023-2024 budgets and financial plans.

Equality and Diversity
7.4

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No, the recommendations
have no direct Equality and Diversity implications.

Agenda Item 8
Page 65
Risk
Risk

Consequence

Budget assumptions are
insufficient.

Budget shortfall.

Risk
Core expenditure is beyond
the budget proposed or
income is lower than
expected.
Risk

Consequence

Unplanned or unexpected
expenditure pressures.

Controls required
Best estimates are used
and are supported by
financial reserves.
Controls required

Budget shortfall.

Financial monitoring and
budgetary control.

Consequence

Controls required

Funding shortfall and
moratorium.

Financial planning and
accountability.

Contact Officers
Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.
Name of Appendix
1

Waste Service Budget 2022-2023

2

Financial Reserves

3

Medium Term Financial Plan

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1
Page 67

Waste Service Budgets 2022-2023

1

Revenue Service Budget: October 2022 to March 2023
Direct costs/income added:

£

Staff Costs

1,079,970

Transport (Fleet)

395,540

Property Costs

65,570

Supplies & Services
External Income

296,660
-

147,520
1,690,220

Contracted costs reduced:

- 1,104,640

One-off adjustments:

-

Budget Requirement

2

465,640
119,940

Met from Reserves

Transition/Project Budget
£
Project Support
Transitional Support Manager

61,880

Setup Costs

65,750

Met from Reserves

3

250,000

377,630

Capital Programme
£
Fleet Vehicles
Other Specified Fixed Assets
IT Costs
Financing

TBC

Valuation prior to transfer
Met From Reserves

56,000 Met from Reserves
117,500 Met from Usable Capital Receipts
TBC

Estimated as £0.6m

This page is intentionally left blank

Balance at 31
March 2022
£000

General Fund Reserves

Committed Specified Use
£000

£000

Unallocated
£000

COVID Section 31 Grants
Collection Fund 2020-2021 deficits

570

570

-

-

Business Rates 2020-2021 deficit
Council Tax 2020-2021 deficit

106
41

106
41

-

-

650
1,000

650
1,000

-

-

Strategic Asset Management Plan
Cremator relining fund (cyclical)
Industrial Units (ring-fenced)
Leisure Centre improvements

375
27
190
425

375
425

27
190
-

-

Excesses

100

-

100

-

VAT exemption - annual calculation
MMI scheme of arrangement
Uninsured losses

155
440
250

440
-

155
250

-

1,828
74
115
378
665
513
452

1,828
74
250
513
-

115
452

128
665
-

383

107

277 -

481

481

-

544
9,762

6,860

COVID TIG
Transformation
Transformation projects delivered in 2022-2023
Major Projects delivery and match funding
Renewals

Insurance
Losses

Contingency

1,043

792

Agenda Item 8

Waste service items

544
2,110

1

Appendix 2
Page 69

Business Rate income - prior year deficits
Council Tax - prior year deficits
SMT Support
Waste service transition support
Waste service delivery
Energy market price pressures
Variations and one-off items
Local Government Reorganisation
Local requirements including Community Governance Review
Others
Welfare - support to external advisors and Housing First
Ring-fenced
Grants for specific expenditure and purposes
Totals

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 3
Page 71

Medium Term Financial
Plan

Version Control:
Document Name:

Medium Term Financial Plan

Version:

24082022

Author:

Director of Resources

Approved by:

Full Council

Date Approved:

September 2022

Review Date:

February 2023

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 72

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
A. Introduction
Financial planning is a key tool for strategic management and is an aid to operational
decision making. Without financial planning the Council would be unlikely to achieve
its priorities or make the best use of its resources. The Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP) is a financial representation of the Council’s vision and supports its priorities.
Our vision is for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.
The thematic key priorities for the next four years are:
1. Enabling our residents to live happy, healthy, productive lives.
Putting people at the centre of all that we do is a key priority for the Council. We
will do this by helping them to have the best start in life, enjoy healthy and active
lifestyles, and have opportunities to improve their well-being by building strong
communities. We will actively encourage people to work with us to design
activities that meet their needs. We will work with our communities so that people
can enjoy good health and live in a safe environment where they can be happy
and reach their full potential.
2. Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where people want to live.
Our Borough is a great place to live, work and have fun. There is an abundance
of natural beauty and heritage but there is also an opportunity to offer people
more. We want a varied housing offer to retain our residents and attract new
people to settle here. We want to build on existing strengths and encourage more
people to visit the town centres in Barrow and Dalton by making them more
vibrant so that residents and visitors enjoy a positive and memorable experience.
We want to protect our natural environment.
3. Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our residents.
Barrow’s manufacturing heritage and its pivotal role in the defence industry is a
source of local pride and tradition. Our world-class manufacturing expertise is
recognised worldwide, however to enable inclusive growth we will seek to
diversify our economy to secure opportunities for our residents by supporting
other key industries including the growing renewable energy sector. In particular,
we have the opportunity to secure continued investment in the Borough and
ensure our residents have the skills and services to allow them to benefit from the
growing economy. We will deliver our ambitions through effective joint working
with public and private sector partners, by offering a clear policy framework,
proactive steps to promote the role and opportunities within the Borough and by
securing additional public and private investment.
These priorities will be used as the basis for all future business planning and to direct
the activity of any spare capacity and resources. Given the severe constraints on
Council income it is necessary to think and act more like a business, drive

Page 1

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 73

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
efficiencies from services, generate more income and support innovation and best
practice within services.
This MTFP covers the period from 2022-2023 to 2024-2025. The level of
Government support for the Council is known for 2022-2023 and the years beyond
are based on that same allocation/settlement with one-off grant allocations removed.
B. Medium Term Financial Strategy
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is to be financially stable and resilient
whilst making strategic and productive use of all resources. The Council strives for
efficiency in the use of resources and by monitoring outcomes and outputs will
demonstrate effectiveness and economy.
In the medium term the Council is focussed on the core budget and ensuring that is
balanced; resources will be focussed and aligned to achieving the delivery of the
Council Plan Priorities. Where necessary reserves will be used to control the pace
of change, fund transformation, support long term financial resilience and aid the
delivery of external funding programmes and projects such as the Town Deal.
B. Planning Process
To ensure a robust and achievable Medium Term Financial Plan is established, the
planning process covers a number of key aspects:









Leadership – leading Members, the Section 151 Officer and the Senior
Management Team demonstrate strong leadership of finances and strategic
direction.
Priorities – the Council Plan Priorities provide a focus for resources.
Ownership – the Director of Resources produces and updates the Medium
Term Financial Plan.
Achievement – the Director of Resources will monitor adherence to the
Medium Term Financial Plan and will quantify and report any significant
deviation to the Senior Management Team and the Executive Committee.
Risk management – the MTFP highlights the key considerations in terms of
finance; the Reserves and Balances Policy risk assesses financial reserves.
Efficiencies – the Senior Management Team will pursue efficiencies and value
for money, realising savings for the core budget. This is an on-going process.
Completeness – the MTFP incorporates the Council Priorities, the Budget
Setting process for revenue, capital and treasury management, and the
Council Tax setting.
Relevance – the MTFP is reviewed periodically throughout the financial year
and revised for known financial impacts. This includes a review once the
previous financial year outturn is known.

Page 2

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 74

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
C. Budget Strategy and Funding
During the austerity of local government finances of the last decade and in order to
achieve a balanced budget, the Council achieved cumulative core budget changes of
£8.9m. The budget changes are deemed to be sustained now; the changes, or
savings, were achieved by the 31 March 2019 and the subsequent budgets have
balanced without requiring budget support from the financial reserves
The Council is committed to continue to offer all current services as far as possible.
Under the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council is charged with setting a
balanced budget by the 11 March of the preceding financial year. The budget for
2022-2023 is balanced; projections ahead in the medium term are not balanced.
The additional Business Rates retained are included in total revenue financing; the
Council’s share of the Business Rates collected and retained has been higher than
the settlement baseline since the inception of the scheme in 2013.
It is hope that the national “re-set” and the Fairer Funding Review will have regard to
the level of funding required by authorities and recognise the reliance upon local
taxes which may be volatile.
The Council Tax precept is included at the higher of £5 on Band D and 1.99% each
year.
For this iteration of the MTFP the existing settlement baseline is projected to
increase at 2% per annum; the additional Business Rates are shown separately.
To project the core budget forward the 2022-2023 budget is restated to eliminate the
one-off use of reserves, non-core expenditure funded by matching income, technical
accounting items and parish precepts.
The original 2022-2023 budget balanced by relying on the one-off Government
grants allocated in the settlement.
Revisions to the 2022-2023 budget have been incorporated for the energy market
price pressures, staff pay award pressures, and the change to direct delivery of the
waste service; these are funded from staff turnover and reserves for 2022-2023.
The one-off Government grants total £321,530 for 2022-2023 which indicates there
is a core deficit in the budget which is inherent in the medium term projections:




Services Grant 2022-2023 £215,740
New Homes Bonus £101,560
New Burdens £4,230

Page 3

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 75

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
The 2022-2023 General Fund budget is set as a balanced budget, but for the
purposes of projecting the budget to future years, it is the core budget that must be
identified.
D. Budget Projections
The medium term projections are shown in summary below and in further detail at
Appendix 1. The assumptions and estimates are explained in the subsequent
Section.
2022-2023
2022-2023
Budget as
Core Budget
published
£
£
Net Revenue Budget
8,841,970
10,982,170
Core Revenue Financing
- 8,520,440 - 10,982,170 Core Deficit/(Surplus)
321,530
One-off Government Grants 321,530
Budget deficit/(surplus)
Incremental deficit

-

321,530

2023-2024
Projected
Budget
£
13,278,840
10,895,330 2,383,510
2,383,510
2,383,510

2024-2025
Projected
Budget
£
13,634,070
11,135,840
2,498,230
2,498,230
114,720

The core deficit for 2022-2023 is shown to identify the incremental widening of the
core deficit for 2023-2024 of £2.4m and for 2024-2025 of £2.5m; the incremental
deficit projected for 2024-2025 is the shortfall between the costs from inflationary
pressures against the additional income raised from local taxes.
In summary, compared to the Plan published in March 2022 the movements are:

MTFP published March 2022
Staff pay pressures
Energy market pressures
Waste service delivery
Staff turnover
Earmarked reserves
One-off adjustments
MTFP published September 2022

2022-2023 2023-2024
£m
£m
Balanced
0.4
0.3
0.3
0.5
0.5
0.6
1.1
(0.3)
(0.6)
(0.5)
Balanced
2.3

2024-2025
£m
0.5
0.3
0.5
1.1
2.4

The cumulative budget deficit unfunded is £4.7m; the core deficits projected for
2023-2024 and 2024-2025.

Page 4

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 76

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
There are a number of uncertainties that cannot be incorporated into the budget
projections that may reduce the core deficit:








New Homes Bonus – funding may continue in later years
Services Grant – this one-off grant has been paid for two years
Income from Fees and Charges – income may exceed expectations
Expenditure – whilst budgets are set against expected requirements each
year, the austerity experienced over the last decade has resulted in prudence,
efficiency and innovation. Savings and reductions may materialise. As an
example, the full staff establishment is budgeted but significant gaps in
vacancies will save budget – this is not desired or targeted but may occur.
Energy market prices may recover during 2023 or 2024.
The opportunities from direct delivery of the waste service are yet to be fully
explored and quantified.

The 2021-2022 outturn resulted in an unplanned contribution to reserves of £513k
which has been set aside for the energy price pressures. The underspend is mainly
around staffing where services were unable to recruit to all posts during 2021-2022;
turnover will occur in 2022-2023 and set aside to cover the pay award pressures.
The 2023-2024 budgets will be prepared with Westmorland and Furness Council,
and all the usual review and consideration work will be undertaken for the Council’s
services.
The 2022-2023 quarterly monitoring will identify any further core permanent changes
and reflect those in the MTFP. The MTFP will be used as part of the key supporting
information in building the budgets for the Westmorland and Furness Authority and a
mechanism for feeding individual authority changes through will be established by
the Finance and Commercial Board.
Whilst the MTFP is not able to be presented as balanced, the future grant funding,
Business Rate Retention, service income and service efficiencies are somewhat
likely to contribute to reducing the core deficit.
E. Assumptions and Estimates
It is necessary to make certain assumptions and calculate estimates when projecting
the budget into future years. Some budget items can be simply uplifted by an
estimated percentage for inflationary pressures whilst others are more complex.
It is important that the underlying bases used to produce the budget projections are
set out in order to measure/vary those as part of budget monitoring during the
financial year.

Page 5

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 77

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
1. General Principles
The Council pursues value for money at all times and whilst the budget projections
do not anticipate a specific saving or budget reduction, all efficiencies will be realised
and either reduce the core deficit, repurposed within the budget or reserved for
future expenditure if necessary.
No service reductions are anticipated and no significant changes in service demand
are projected.
From 2022-2023 the Council’s budgets include the funding
arrangements for Barrow Forward Limited, the Council’s wholly owned leisure
company operating the park leisure centre. From this September 2022 revision, the
Council’s budgets will also include the direct delivery of the waste service.
2. Staff Related Expenditure
The full establishment is budgeted for as it is anticipated that posts currently vacant
will be filled. The organisational restructure has been incorporated into the budget
overall and resources aligned to the new divisions from April 2022.
Employees with incremental progression within grades will progress as normal.
The pay award for 2022-2023 has been updated to reflect the latest offer but is not
yet finalised. Future year pay awards have been estimated as 2%.
3. Bought-in Supplies and Services
These are the annual assumptions applied to each of the projected years. There
has been no adjustment for gas and electricity prices reducing from the peak
expected in 2022-2023; the projections have assumed the 2022-2023 costs become
the new base.
Property costs:
 Utilities 3%
 Business Rates 2%
 Maintenance contracts and materials 3%
Supplies and services
 Software maintenance 3%
 Subscriptions and publications 3%
 Professional fees and consultancy %
Contracts
 Revenues and benefits IT 0%
 Building cleaning contract 3%
 Grounds maintenance contract 3%

Page 6

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 78

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
4. External Income
External income covers over £5.9m of the Council’s gross expenditure.
There are no new fee or charge price increases proposed with the 2022-2023
General Fund budget and that has been mirrored in the medium term with the
following exceptions:







Certain services operate on full cost recovery and the medium term budgets
maintain that for: allotments; building control (the fee earning element); and
local land charges.
The recycling credit/reward per ton increases by 3% each year (this is
statutory). No increase in recycling tonnage is included in the budget
projections, but it is hoped that an improvement will materialise from the
communications and marketing strategy.
It is assumed that the additional rent from letting the Waterfront Gateway
Business Centre will cover the income losses from the Marina Village site.
Administration grants that relate to Housing Benefits, Council Tax Support
and Business Rates all reducing by 5% each year.
Income related to the waste service has been introduced and will require a
review – this may be part of the Westmorland and Furness harmonisation.

5. Treasury Management
The Council has PWLB fixed rate debt belonging to the General Fund and the
Housing Revenue Account. No new borrowing is to be drawn down and maturities
during the medium term are repaid.
The Minimum Revenue Provision is the amount required to be set aside to reply debt
under statute. The amount does not alter in the medium term.
In terms of interest earned on temporary surplus cash the Council manages this
under the Treasury Management Strategy which generally focusses deposits with
Building Societies and other local authorities – security is paramount, then liquidity
and finally yield.
The weighted average principle for the years and the average rate of interest
assumed is:




2022-2023 £24.5m 0.3%
2023-2024 £20m 0.75%
2024-2025 £20m 1%

Page 7

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 79

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
6. Council Tax Precept
The Council Tax Base increased during 2021-2022 and this impacted on the Council
Tax calculation for 2022-2023. The increase comes from changes in chargeable
dwellings in the borough, the discounts applied, and the uptake of Council Tax
Support; Council Tax Support is netted off the Council Tax Base.
A 1% growth in each year is projected and this is based on normal actual growth.
The Council Tax precept in the MTFP excludes the Parish precepts as those are
determined by the local councils.
The Council Tax is assumed to increase by the maximum permitted by the
Referendum Principles which is currently £5 on the Band D amount or 1.99%.
7. Settlement Baseline and Additional Business Rates
At some point the Revenue Support Grant will be merged into the settlement
baseline. The settlement baseline is the value of Business Rates that Government
expects the Council to retain from the whole value collected. The settlement
baseline increases along with the Business Rate multiplier each year; the projections
assume a 2% increase.
The Council’s actual share of the whole value of Business Rates collected is higher
than the settlement baseline. The additional Business Rates income has previously
been partly used to fund the General Fund budget and set aside for income volatility
(the reserved volatility is used to cushion the budget).
In previous years around 20% of the additional Business Rates is excluded from the
budget to be set aside against volatility. It is not possible to exclude such a
percentage of revenue financing in balancing the 2022-2023 budget, or the years
ahead. The volatility reserve will be reduced should the budget require support from
movement in the business rate base and increased should the business rate base or
pooling create a surplus.
No significant additions or losses are assumed in the Business Rate base.
Membership of the Cumbria Business Rate Pool continues, and the estimated pool
benefit is included in the budget.
8. New Homes Bonus
The New Homes Bonus shown for 2022-2023 has surpassed the threshold and grant
has been awarded, however that is noted that the awards for 2022-2023 shall not
attract legacy payments.

Page 8

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 80

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
F. Reserves and Balances
The Council holds earmarked reserves and has fund balances, and these can be
held for three main purposes:




a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid
unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms part of general reserves;
a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies –
this also forms part of general reserves;
a means of building up funds, often referred to as earmarked reserves to meet
known or predicted requirements; earmarked reserves are accounted for
separately but remain legally part of the General Fund.

Earmarked reserves are used to fund items of non-recurring expenditure.
Upon closing each financial year, the outturn is reviewed and surpluses are
appropriates to relevant specific reserves (commercial properties for example), and
the balance added to the Budget Contingency reserve; all reserves are reviewed
when the financial year is closed and transfers are made where required.
In order to be in a position to mitigate the fluctuations in the Borough Council’s
retained share of Business Rates, income has been prudently set aside into a
volatility reserve. As the localisation of Business Rates progresses there is an
increased risk and reliance placed on Business Rates to finance Council services;
this may be over and above the current fluctuations, revaluations and appeals.
The movements in reserves included in the projections are the best estimates based
on previous years and known timeframes, but there may be slippage across the
period covered. The movement for 2022-2023 consists of the movements presented
with the budget, plus others that are anticipated to be drawn down during 2022-2023
but amounts and timing are not certain.
Until the funding position beyond 2022-2023 is known, reserves as a whole will be
protected as far as possible. The Council’s reserves are set out in the Reserves and
Balances policy.
Reserves are earmarked for specific purposes through
recommendations to Full Council from the Executive Committee. The transferring,
repurposing or extinguishing of reserves is dealt with by the Executive Committee.
The General Fund balance at the 31 March, 2022 was £2,300,000; the minimum
balance required is currently £1,900,000.
The General Fund earmarked reserves over the life of this Medium Term Financial
Plan are projected in the following table.

Page 9

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 81

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025

Reserve
COVID Section 31 Grants
COVID TIG Grants
Transformation
Renewals
Insurance Excesses
Losses
Budget Contingency
Local Government Reorganisation
Welfare Support
Ring-fenced Grants
Total

Outturn at 31
March 2022
£000
570
147
1,650
1,017
100
845
4,024
384
481
544
9,762

Estimate at 31
March 2023
£000
75
362
639
80
845
1,298
114
342
3,755

Estimate at 31
March 2024
£000
217
319
60
845
1,190
57
267
2,955

Estimate at 31
March 2025
£000
95
242
40
845
1,082
192
2,496

The use of reserves across 2022-2025 includes major projects drawdown, public
buildings maintenance, insurance excesses, local government reorganisation,
budget variations, welfare support, waste service transition, and some drawdown of
ring-fenced grants.
Where necessary any depleted earmarked reserves will be reviewed and topped-up
from other reserves or alternatively from revenue.
The purpose of the earmarked reserves is as follows:











Transformation – funds for service redesign and investment in efficiencies;
restructuring; funds for major projects and match funding.
Renewals – revenue funds set aside for capital/major projects and cyclical
renewal of major items.
Insurance - funds set aside for excesses payable over the medium term.
Losses – funds set aside for the partial exemption VAT threshold, Municipal
Mutual Insurance scheme of arrangement and uninsured losses.
Contingency – funds set aside for one-off items that are not in the core
revenue budget including business rate volatility and the waste service
transition.
Welfare support – funds set aside for Housing First and external welfare
funding commitments.
Local Government Reorganisation – this reserve was created for the
Implementation across Cumbria and for funds set aside for costs incurred
directly that are outside the purposes of the Implementation Reserve.
COVID-19 – this reserve holds the grant funding that related to the borough
share of Council Tax and Business Rates; the grant funding relating to relief
awarded and income losses that will be distributed under existing precepting
arrangements.
Revenue grants – ring-fenced income which has no claw-back conditions
attached and are yet to be applied to matching expenditure.

Page 10

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 82

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
G. Council Tax
The Council Tax for 2022-2023 was set by Full Council on the 24 February 2022.
The unparished Band A value is £166.94 including a £3.33 increase (2.04%).
The unparished Band D value is £250.41 with the Tax Base at 19,899.25.
The Council’s demand on the Collection Fund to meet the 2022-2023 General Fund
budget was set at £4,982,970 excluding parish precepts.
The Council Tax Base is calculated on Band D equivalents; the following table
highlights that 89% of properties in the Borough are lower than Band D, giving the
authority a low Council Tax Base.
The chargeable dwellings for 2022-2023 are shown in their Council Tax bands:

Barrow Borough Council is the billing authority for the borough which means that in
addition to the amount collected to pay for the services directly delivered, the Council
also bills for, collects and distributes the precepts or Council Tax for Cumbria County
Council, the Police & Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and the local parishes.

Page 11

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 83

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
Each £1 collected belongs to:

H. Risk
Estimates contain an element of risk from items such as inflation, the financial
markets, Government support, customer demand and the anticipation of future
events. The Council’s Reserves and Balances Policy sets out the risk assessment
applied to estimates. Some of the key financial considerations are:















Strong contracting and procurement.
Uncertainty concerning future funding.
Delivery of the Council Plan within financial constraints.
Impacts of delivering of major projects and accountable body status.
Allowances for inflation may be insufficient.
Impacts of establishment restructure or job evaluation and grading.
Employer pension contributions may increase.
National insurance contributions may increase.
Staff grading changes or other structural changes are not budgeted for.
Usage of gas and electricity may be estimated too low.
Business Rates and water rates may change.
Professional services may be required to support key functions.
Local Government Reorganisation.
The possibility of driving further efficiency savings from the budget.

Page 12

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 84

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025














No major contracts are due to be retendered during the life of this Plan.
Some lower value (non-major) long-term contracts are to be retendered during
the life of this Plan.
Additional expenditure items must be necessary and are subject to approval;
as determined by the Director of Resources.
Recurring additional expenditure must be approved and is subject to the
approval of the Director of Resources.
Cash flow requirements must be constantly reviewed.
The cost of new borrowing is not included or anticipated.
Interest rate fluctuations.
The next triennial pension fund valuation will apply from April 2023.
Uncertain of the continuation of the Cumbria Business Rates Pool.
The impact of Universal Credit and other welfare reforms.
Economic downturn.
Strong and robust financial management.
New requirements or legislative changes with significant implications.

I. Capital
The Capital Programme is based on the principles set out in the Capital Strategy.
The Programme for this medium term period does not include any borrowing which
would lead to increased capital costs in the revenue budget.
The Programme does include anticipated funding for known grants when projects
are confirmed, capital receipts, and the use of the Major Repairs Reserve.
The Renewals Reserve may be called upon where Council owned properties require
major capital works; this is informed by the Strategic Asset Management Plan.
The capital receipts include known land disposals that are already identified and in
progress – if those receipts are realised then the Programme is fully funded.
The projects in future years will not be commissioned until sufficient funding is in
place.
For externally funded projects, the Council’s policy is not to include schemes in the
overall Programme until such time as the sources of funding have been confirmed.
The summarised Capital Programme 2022-2025 consist of:

Page 13

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 85

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025

Programme
Public Housing
Private Housing
Housing Market Renewal
Public Buildings
Industrial & Commercial Property
Regeneration & Public Realm
Total of Programme

Financing
Disabled Facilities Grant
European Structural and Investment Fund
Town Deal
Heritage Action Zone
Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership
Levelling Up Fund
Brownfield Land Release Fund
Major Repairs Reserve
GF Earmarked Reserves
Usable Capital Receipts
Total of Financing

2022-2023
£

2023-2024
£

2024-2025
£

2,161,260
1,310,000
1,532,895
192,948
1,766,136
14,279,208
21,242,447

2,161,260
1,000,000
2,537,917
119,888
477,000
20,655,448
26,951,513

2,161,260
1,000,000
616,100
659,164
222,667
2,180,669
6,839,860

2022-2023
£

2023-2024
£

2024-2025
£

1,000,000
529,347
9,604,817
231,100
567,157
4,497,115
1,519,081
2,161,260
502,014
630,556
21,242,447

1,000,000
10,256,851
34,665
11,295,370
2,161,260
142,998
2,060,369
26,951,513

1,000,000
2,867,367
2,161,260
263,819
547,414
6,839,860

Any further capital investment is dependent upon generating additional usable
capital receipts or securing external funding.
J. Treasury
The Treasury Management Strategy and Capital Strategy are set annually. The
Treasury Strategy includes the Prudential Indicators that control all of the Council’s
treasury activities, the borrowing strategy, the annual investment strategy and credit
and counterparty risk management.
CIPFA defines treasury management as: “The management of the local authority’s
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

Page 14

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 86

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
The Council is required to set the maximum level, beyond which external debt is
prohibited. This limit can only be set or revised by Full Council. This Prudential
Indicator is the Authorised Limit for External Debt:

Authorised limit
Total

2021-22
Estimate
£m
55.7

2022-23
Estimate
£m
54.9

2023-24
Estimate
£m
55.0

2024-25
Estimate
£m
55.2

The General Fund external debt is long term whilst the Housing Revenue Account
has a mixture of maturity dates due to the self-financing exit from the previous
Government subsidy regime.
The external debt for MTFP period will be:
External debt
At 1st April
Expected change
Gross debt at 31st March

2020-21
2021-22
2022-23
2023-24
2024-25
Actual
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
36.479
35.479
34.479
33.479
32.479
(1.000)
(1.000)
(1.000)
(1.000)
(1.000)
35.479
34.479
33.479
32.479
31.479

K. Housing Revenue Account
From the 1 April 2012 the Housing Subsidy system ended. The Housing Revenue
Account is self-financing as set out in its 30 year Business Plan; the rent from the
dwellings pays for the upkeep and management of the dwellings.
The Housing Revenue Account remains a ring-fenced account as determined by the
Local Government Housing Act 1989.
The Housing Revenue Account budget for 2022-2023 was set by Full Council on the
24 February 2022; a balanced budget with a 3.1% rent increase for dwellings and
garages.
For 2022-2023 there is a contribution from the Major Repairs Reserve to cover the
increased Housing Maintenance Investment plan
The dwelling stock at the 1 April 2022 was 2,549 and is estimated that there will be 8
sales in 2022-2023 and 14 sales per year assumed for future budget projections.
The projections out to 2024-2025 show a balanced budget for the Housing Revenue
Account; the projections use the same assumptions as the General Fund where
applicable, plus dwelling and garage rents increasing by a notional 1% each year to
provide an indication of income only. Where any surplus arises it has been allocated
Page 15

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Borough
Council3
Appendix
Page 87

Medium Term Financial Plan
2022-2023 to 2024-2025
to the maintenance budget which fluctuates each year in accordance with the overall
housing maintenance programme.
The Housing Revenue Account balance at the 31 March 2022 was £1,000,000; the
minimum balance required is currently £900,000.
The MTFP projection for the Housing Revenue Account is:
Approved
Budget
2022-2023
£
Expenditure:
Repairs and maintenance
Supervision and management
Rents, rates, taxes and others
Depreciation of dwellings
Depreciation of other assets
Debt management expenses
Bad debt provision
Total expenditure
Income:
Dwelling rents
Non-dwelling rents
Charges for services and facilities
Total income

3,712,430
3,893,500
19,000
1,867,340
140,300
16,290
157,030
9,805,890

-

Interest payable and similar charges
Adjustments under regulations:
Voluntary repayment provision
Revenue contribution to capital
Pension contributions
Movement in reserves
Total adjustments

-

10,124,360
395,710
1,199,790
11,719,860

-

Estimated Core
Budget
2023-2024
£

Estimated Core
Budget
2024-2025
£

3,660,760
3,940,070
19,380
1,867,340
140,300
16,290
157,030
9,801,170

3,687,320
3,987,890
19,760
1,867,340
140,300
16,290
157,030
9,875,930

10,168,750
399,650
1,199,790
11,768,190

-

10,212,920
403,620
1,199,790
11,816,330

862,320

836,710

809,690

816,520
293,920
19,480
78,270
1,051,650

816,520
293,920
19,870
1,130,310

816,520
293,920
20,270
1,130,710

Deficit/(surplus)

-

Page 16

-

-

Medium Term Financial Projections

Appendix 1

Approved
Budget
2022-2023
£

Eliminate Non- Core Budget
core Items
2022-2023
£

£

Estimated
Core Budget
2023-2024
£

Budget
Changes
£

Estimated
Core Budget
2024-2025
£

Budget
Changes
£

Subjective headings:
Staff Related Expenditure

8,244,520

1,355,730

9,600,250

Bought-in Supplies & Services

8,961,400 -

1,148,440

7,812,960 -

Cost of Housing Benefits

480,930

184,270

7,628,690

131,150

7,759,840

480,930

6,249,480 -

149,870 -

6,399,350 -

17,960 -

Internal Income

-

1,045,960

-

1,016,560

-

Net Revenue Budget

11,951,930

-

6,267,440

-

277,960

480,930

-

Use of Reserves

11,673,970

-

External Income
Treasury Management

2,073,720

-

2,548,040

1,914,950 -

8,841,970

2,140,200

1,045,960

-

-

1,045,960

3,880 -

1,016,560 -

76,000

940,560 -

50,000

633,090

633,090

-

-

10,982,170

2,296,670

13,278,840

480,930
-

6,403,230
1,045,960
890,560
-

355,230

13,634,070

Budget financed by:
Council Tax Precept

-

5,131,730

148,760 -

Settlement Baseline

-

4,447,980

-

Additional Business Rates

-

1,140,320

51,010 -

1,089,310 -

New Homes Bonus

-

101,560

-

-

101,560

101,560

Other Government Grants

-

360,350

-

-

360,350

219,970 -

Prior Year Council Tax
Prior Year Business Rates

-

-

84,370 -

5,133,290 4,447,980
1,173,680 140,380

154,450 -

5,287,740

-

-

4,447,980

86,060 -

1,259,740

-

-

140,380

82,070 -

82,070

-

-

-

-

-

2,257,900 -

2,257,900

-

-

-

-

-

8,841,970 -

2,140,200 -

-

-

10,982,170
-

86,840 2,383,510

10,895,330 2,383,510

240,510 114,720

11,135,840
2,498,230

Agenda Item 8

Deficit/(surplus)

-

4,447,980

150,320 -

Appendix 3
Page 88

Total Revenue Financing

-

4,982,970 -

